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Financial Highlights W& #H®z

Annual result for the year ended 31 March 2024 HEZE=Z-ME=A=+-BLFEZ2FLH
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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 HE-_Z-ME=A=+-BEEZ

EE

* Revenue o s HK$459.8 million  459.8 A& T
* Profit before income tax o« BRATEBADER HK$10.9 million 109878
o Shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2024 cFoBoMEZA=+-ARENG HK$495.5 million 4955 B A&
* Basic earnings per share o BREA&EF HK1.19 cents 1.19 784
2024 2023

—E-NE =5

Revenue (HK$'000) ik (F#T) 459,848 454,764
Operating profit (HK$'000) KEHF (FHET) 14,477 18,275
Profit before income tax (HK$’000) BRAEEENER (T T) 10,862 16,669
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$'000) R % K7 535 F) (F38 7T) 8,543 14,073
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARRF (GBL) 1.19 2.22
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)  #Ziv&RAKREAR S GBAL) - 0.5
Net asset value (HK$'000) BrEAE(TER) 495,493 496,715
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Chairman’s Statement EEHR&EH

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the management, | am
pleased to present to the Company’s shareholders a review of our
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 and our
prospects.

[ am pleased to present the Chairman’s Statement for the fiscal year
ended 2024. This year has been marked by significant challenges
and opportunities shaped by the dynamic real estate market in
Hong Kong, broader global economic conditions, and regional
geopolitical conflicts. Our Company, one of the leaders in
supplying ironmongeries and sanitary wares, has navigated these
complexities with resilience and strategic foresight.

PAST PERFORMANCE IN 2023

The year 2023 was marked by a volatile economic landscape, with
rising geopolitical tensions and inflationary pressures affecting
global markets. These challenges, tighter financial conditions, and
higher interest rates posed significant hurdles. Due to these global
economic shifts, the real estate market in Hong Kong experienced
fluctuations. Despite these challenges, our Company demonstrated
robust performance, achieving a marginal revenue increase
compared to the previous year. Our diversified product portfolio
and strong customer relationships drove this success.

Our revenue remained steady, supported by ongoing demand for
high-quality ironmongeries and sanitary wares in both residential
and commercial projects. The Hong Kong government’s easing of
property cooling measures, known locally as the removal of “spicy
measures,” provided a modest boost to the property market. These
policy changes revitalised market activity and positively impacted
our sales, particularly in the year’s second half.

Furthermore, we focused on enhancing operational efficiency
through supply chain optimisation. These efforts enabled us to
maintain competitive pricing and improve delivery times, ensuring
customer satisfaction and loyalty. By streamlining our operations,
we could effectively navigate the challenging economic
environment and position ourselves for continued success.
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Chairman’s Statement FER&EH

FUTURE TRENDS AND OUTLOOK FOR 2024

Looking ahead to 2024, we anticipate a cautiously optimistic
environment for the real estate market in Hong Kong. The market is
expected to benefit from economic recovery, supportive
government policies, favourable interest rates, infrastructure
developments, and favourable investment sentiment. With
projected GDP growth of 2.5% to 3.5%, supported by government
initiatives such as the Land Sale Programme and the promotion of
green and smart technologies, market activity is poised for
stimulation. Additionally, the influx of talent through various
immigration schemes further enhances this outlook. Anticipated
interest rate cuts and easing monetary policies in mainland China
are likely to lower borrowing costs and enhance investment flows,
reinforcing demand in the real estate sector. While challenges such
as geopolitical tensions and global trade uncertainties persist, these
drivers collectively provide a foundation for growth.

Hong Kong has implemented several talent admission schemes to
attract high-quality professionals and researchers. Notable among
these are the Top Talent Pass Scheme, Technology Talent
Admission Scheme, Quality Migrant Admission Scheme, General
Employment Policy, Immigration Arrangements for Non-local
Graduates, and the Admission Scheme for the Second Generation
of Chinese Hong Kong Permanent Residents. On 7 May 2024, the
Secretary for Labour & Welfare, Chris Sun, highlighted the
substantial progress in attracting talent through these schemes.
Over the past 18 months, approximately 120,000 individuals have
arrived in Hong Kong under these programmes. These Enhanced
Talent Schemes have significantly contributed to Hong Kong's
vibrant talent pool and economic growth, driving increased
demand in the real estate market, particularly for luxury and
premium properties. They have also reinforced Hong Kong's status
as an international financial hub, further supporting the real estate
market. The financial industry remains a major source of demand
for premium office spaces.

We expect the removal of property cooling measures to continue
stimulating the real estate market, driving demand for our products.
The anticipated increase in construction activity presents
opportunities for growth in both new projects and the renovation
sector. We plan to capitalise on these opportunities by expanding
our product range and enhancing our service offerings to meet
evolving customer needs.
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However, the Hong Kong real estate market faces several key risks
and challenges, including the potential for interest rate hikes,
concerns over economic conditions in Mainland China, ongoing
geopolitical tensions, affordability issues for residents, possible
regulatory changes or new policies, reshoring policies, and the
looming threat of a broader economic downturn. Navigating these
headwinds while maintaining the market’s attractiveness to high-
net-worth individuals and investors, alongside the influx of talent
drawn by the enhanced talent schemes, will be crucial for
sustaining the resilience of Hong Kong's real estate sector in the
year ahead.

Our strategic priorities for 2024 include strengthening our market
presence through targeted marketing campaigns and partnerships
with key industry players. While optimistic about the future, we
remain vigilant about potential risks, including economic
uncertainties and market volatility. Our proactive risk management
approach involves continuously monitoring market conditions,
maintaining a flexible supply chain, and ensuring financial
prudence.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all our staff members for their unwavering contribution
and devotion. Your hard work and commitment have been
instrumental in our success. | would also like to convey my
heartfelt appreciation to our consumers and business associates for
their continued trust and support. Your loyalty and partnership are
the cornerstones of our sustained growth and achievements.
Together, we will continue to navigate the ever-evolving market
landscape and drive sustainable success in 2024 and beyond.

Thank you for your continued trust and confidence in our
Company.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

24 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEEITIL S5 4T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in importing, wholesale,
retailing and installing architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom,
kitchen collections and furniture and providing interior design
services, project and contract management in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
implementation and an account of the Group’s key relationships
with its employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Annual Report 2023/24.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report
2023/24. Except the code provision D.2.5 of Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, during the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company
has complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules, the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Cayman Islands Companies Act.

Hong Kong’s economy, known for its dynamism and minimally
interventionist policies, has always been open and responsive to
global economic shifts. In 2023, escalating geopolitical tensions
among major economies, particularly China, the United States (the
“U.S.”), and the European Union (the “E.U.”), significantly
influenced this economic landscape. Given that Hong Kong’s
economic growth is closely tied to China’s economic performance,
these tensions have profoundly impacted Hong Kong’s trade,
business operations, and strategic geopolitical standing. In 2023,
China’s economy demonstrated resilience and growth despite
challenges, with a Gross Domestic Product (the “GDP”) growth
rate of 5.2% over the previous year.

Al 55 [B1 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis ERE LS 7

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The reshoring initiatives undertaken by Western nations, aimed at
reducing dependency on China, have had a tangible impact on
Hong Kong’s economic activities. The United States has been
leading this movement, actively advocating for the realignment of
manufacturing and supply chains to lessen reliance on Chinese
production capabilities. This strategic shift has not only affected
trade volumes but also investor sentiment. Foreign investors have
become increasingly cautious due to the unpredictable nature of
the relations between China and the E.U./U.S. This uncertainty has
eroded confidence, leading to a reticence in investment,
particularly in sectors where Hong Kong has traditionally excelled.

The real estate market in Hong Kong, traditionally a barometer of
economic health and investor confidence, has been significantly
impacted by the prevailing geopolitical conflicts; the 2023/24
period saw a marked decrease in investment activity and capital
inflows, particularly within the commercial and high-end
residential property segments. Central banks of advanced
economies raised interest rates sharply to curb inflation, thereby
tightening global financial conditions and dampening import
demand for goods. Consequently, Hong Kong's total goods exports
decreased notably by 10.3% last year.

The geopolitical standoffs have fueled uncertainty, weakening the
economic outlook and resulting in subdued demand from
individual purchasers and corporate entities. Concerns over
potential shifts in policy and regulatory frameworks, coupled with
fluctuations in currency and exchange rates, have compounded
these challenges, diminishing the market’s appeal to investors
during this tumultuous period.

In contrast, the market for private domestic units in Hong Kong
presented a more nuanced picture in 2023. The first half of the
year maintained a semblance of stability in terms of demand and
pricing. However, the latter half witnessed moderation, reflecting
the evolving economic backdrop and market conditions. An
increase in new housing supply, alongside a softening of investor
activity, played a significant role in shaping the market dynamics
throughout the year. This mixed performance underscores the
complex interplay between local market forces and the broader
geopolitical climate, which continues to shape Hong Kong's
economic trajectory. Despite these challenges, Hong Kong's
economy has demonstrated resilience and adaptability. The
territory continues to leverage its strengths and strategic position to
navigate these complex geopolitical dynamics; the Hong Kong
economy ended the year positively, with the real Gross Domestic

if; Product growing by 3.2%.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

The environment of uncertainty fostered by these geopolitical
dynamics has led to cautious investment decisions. Despite a
modest recovery in early 2023, the secondary property market for
domestic prices experienced a downturn. The upward momentum
lost steam amidst the relatively high interest rate environment,
tightened financial conditions, an uncertain external economic
outlook, subdued local demand, and cautious investor and
developer sentiment. Economic uncertainties, both globally and
locally, have significantly affected investors and potential home
buyers.

According to the Rating and Valuation Department of the Hong
Kong SAR Government, prices in the last quarter of 2023 saw a
decline of 7.2% compared to the same period in the previous year.
The transaction volume of secondary private domestic units
decreased by 4% to 43,002 units, down from 45,050 units in 2022.
Furthermore, the number of private domestic completions in 2023
stood at 13,852 units, marking a 35% reduction from 2022. These
figures underscore the challenges faced by the real estate market in
Hong Kong and the need for strategic planning and execution to
navigate through these turbulent times.

In the fiscal year of 2023, the Land Sale Revenue amounted to
HKD12.3 billion, a figure that significantly fell short of the targeted
HKD85 billion. This shortfall can be attributed to a confluence of
factors, including economic uncertainties, market sentiment,
government policies, developers’ cautious attitude towards the
market, and external geopolitical factors. These elements have
collectively contributed to a reticent investment climate and lower-
than-expected land sale revenues.

In an effort to stabilise the real estate market, the Hong Kong
Government cancelled all Special Stamp Duty (the “SSD”), Buyer’s
Stamp Duty (the “BSD”), and New Residential Stamp Duty (the
“NRSD”) for residential property transactions starting from 28
February 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ERE LS 7

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The economic landscape of Hong Kong in 2023 was significantly
shaped by ongoing geopolitical tensions, particularly those
involving its major trading partners, China and the United States.
The global trend towards reshoring and the strategic shift to reduce
reliance on China for manufacturing, especially in the electric
vehicle sector, has pronouncedly affected Hong Kong’s economic
performance.

Despite these challenging economic and market conditions in
Hong Kong and a 61% decline in project sales during the financial
year ended on 31 March 2024, we managed to achieve marginal
growth in revenue. There were notable improvements:

1. Furniture & Kitchen: Sales in this category saw a marginal
increase.

2. Sanitary Wares: Sales of sanitary wares rose by 27.5%.
3. China Sales: Sales in China increased significantly by 65%.

4. Design Section: Remarkably, the Design section experienced
a 4.7-fold growth.

These positive trends indicate resilience and strategic adjustments
in response to market challenges.

Our revenue and, consequently, the gross profit experienced a
modest increase compared to the 2022/23 fiscal year. This
achievement is noteworthy, particularly considering that the
transaction volume in the secondary property market was
approximately 4% lower than the previous year.

However, it is important to note that our profit after income tax
decreased by 39.3% due to increased operating expenses,
including shop relocation costs, asset depreciation, and loss related
to property valuation. This decline underscores the complex and
challenging business environment we operate in.

Despite these challenges, our Group remains steadfast in our
commitment to leverage our extensive experience and work
diligently to maintain and strengthen our relationships in Hong
Kong. We will continue collaborating with reputable property
developers to seize future opportunities. Our strategic focus
remains on delivering sustainable growth and value for our
stakeholders. We are confident in navigating these challenges and

B look forward to a prosperous future.
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

BERE BARS | /
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REVENUE REVIEW W 25 =1 B
Revenue by business segment Bl 555 BRI 2z Wi

BECE_NFE=A=1+—HLEE XEALE
AWENRN459.8 B AT  REFLM1.1%

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group's total turnover was
HK$459.8 million, representing an increase of 1.1% as compared
with the previous year.

Revenue from external customers As a percentage of sales

IRz HHESE L
31 March 31 March
=R=t-8 =A=1-H
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F Tz —ECMF —BC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
TER FTHERT
Architectural builders’ BRAS  IARE
hardware, bathroom BEf
collections and others 349,943 314,574 11.2 76.1 69.2
Kitchen collection and furniture ERE&RRH 109,905 140,190 (21.6) 23.9 30.8
459,848 454,764 1.1 100.0 100.0
Profitability by business segment B 5 8R5 2 BAIEE D

Reportable segment gross profit Gross profit margin

LRz 2 HEF EFIE
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023
—E-MNE —EC-=F Tz —ECMF —EI=RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
FHT TER
Architectural builders’ BRAL  DARE
hardware, bathroom REAM
collections and others 138,705 109,720 26.4 39.6 34.9
Kitchen collection and furniture ERiE& R R 40,505 70,886 (42.9) 36.9 50.6
179,210 180,606 0.8 39.0 39.7
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REVENUE REVIEW (cONT'D)

Revenue by business segment (cont'd)

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment increased by 11.2% to HK$349.9
million (2023: HK$314.6 million) as compared to the previous
year. During the year, we supplied for projects such as Blue Coast,
KT Marina, Belgravia Place, OnMantin.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
decreased by 21.6% to HK$109.9 million (2023: HK$140.2
million) as compared to the previous year. During the year, we
supplied for projects such as IN ONE ABOVE.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$179.2
million (2023: HK$180.6 million), representing an decrease of
0.8% from the previous year. The overall gross profit margin
slightly decreased to 39.0% from 39.7%.

The Group’s operating profit was HK$14.5 million (2023: HK$18.3
million), representing an decrease of 20.8% from the prior year.
The amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs
increased slightly to HK$161.7 million (2023: HK$161.7 million)
which reflected our efforts in controlling selling expenses despite
resumption in selling activities and cost control in staffing and
distribution.

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to operate its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.2 (2023: 1.9) and 1.2 (2023: 1.2),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits with
maturity over three months approximated HK$87.7 million as at 31
March 2024 (2023: HK$146.7 million).

Inventories increased to HK$169.7 million (2023: HK$144.9
million). The current trade, retention and other receivables
increased to HK$115.1 million (2023: HK$94.3 million), while the
trade and other payables decreased to HK$31.0 million (2023:
HK$43.3 million).

As at 31 March 2024, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is 2.0% (2023: net cash position). The interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group decreased to HK$58.6 million
(2023: HK$64.0 million) as at 31 March 2024.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2024, performance bonds of approximately HK$7.9 million
(2023: HK$23.3 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2024.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

On 9 January 2023, the Company completed a rights issue and
issued 118,238,942 rights shares, on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every four (4) then existing shares, at a price of HK$0.192
per rights share (the “2023 Rights Issue”). Upon completion of the
2023 Rights Issue, the Company received net cash proceeds of
approximately HK$21.4 million (the “Net Proceeds”). The
Company intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i)
approximately HK$11.7 million for financing the estimated
renovation costs and related expenses for setting up a new
showroom and warehouse in connection with the Group’s kitchen
collection and furniture business; (ii) approximately HK$7.7
million for repayment of bank loans; and (iii) approximately
HK$2.0 million as general working capital of the Group.

The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use
of the Net Proceeds raised from the 2023 Rights Issue:

Intended use of
Net Proceeds as

R~

RS AR

FoE-=F—ANB  ARAAEXEBRHIEEMN4)
REANMERGRE — () BREBRBROZEEASR
AR 10 0.192 B T 2 18 417 118,238,942 BR i A%
BHTZB_=F4H#RK]  -ER-ZF_=FMHKRE
AN TE WIS FAERUEFILN21.4 BT BT
BRUEI]) o RATREFIERTUSTATUT A
EZ ) AN TEABTATEXTEARREER
RS HWFRHERECHMEITTEI IR AR
BIEFZEERES VA7 7B ABTATEERT
BFG RGiNYW20BABTRAEAEHAN—REE
B

TRBFIEXHA=E = = FRBHERTAAN
G

Actual use of

disclosed in the  Net Proceeds up to Unutilised
prospectus dated 31 March 2024 as  Net Proceeds as at Intended use and
14 December 2022  originally intended 31 March 2024  expected timeline
A& B E
et RgER Bz
+=A+mAE —ECopNE —EomE
ZERFAHEE ZA=+-8H =ZA=t-H
Z RSB BTSRRI HAGAZ BEAER
AERERR APz KR AR REMIUER TR ER
Financing the estimated renovation HK$11.7 million HK$11.7 million Nil  To be used as originally
costs and related expenses for intended during the
setting up a new showroom and first half of 2023 and
warehouse in connection with the through 2024
Group’s kitchen collection and
furniture business
BARFEBEREEER N7BRER N7BRERT T ToEDZFLE¥F
S S5 HIFTRTIZE R E-RNEHE
KENMEITRHEAR RIEE R R
BXRBRFAXRRES
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE (coNnT'D)

Intended use of
Net Proceeds as

Actual use of

AR TS RIA IR (

%)

disclosed in the  Net Proceeds up to Unutilised
prospectus dated 31 March 2024 as  Net Proceeds as at Intended use and
14 December 2022  originally intended 31 March 2024  expected timeline
=R BRELE
St -3 RAgEA Bz
+=A+mA “E-ME “E-ME
ZERAKRE =A=+-A =A=+-A
BRI BIFT SR HRFAZ WERER
A EELE g A2 KRAR FERIEEM  FHE AR
Repayment of bank loans HK$7.7 million HK$7.7 million Nil  To be used as originally
intended from January
2023 to March 2024
BRRITHN 77BABT 7.7 BB T FT=EZZF-A
EZECMEZA
RELE AR ER
General working capital of the HK$2.0 million HK$2.0 million Nil  To be used as originally
Group intended from January
2023 to March 2024
AEAN-—REZAE 20B7ET 20B7ET x T-B-=%-8
EZRNF=AR
RELEREER
FUTURE PROSPECTS RERRBE

Looking ahead, the global landscape is rife with uncertainty.
Geopolitical risks are undermining economic activity and causing
disruptions in global supply chains. Elections worldwide could
introduce new political risks and volatility. Domestically, China is
grappling with significant challenges, from a sluggish real estate
market to weak consumer sentiment. Stimulating consumption is a
crucial yet formidable task. The future economic trajectory of Hong
Kong is intricately tied to China’s effectiveness in addressing its
internal economic hurdles. The interplay between Hong Kong’s
economic policies and China’s broader macroeconomic climate is
of utmost importance. The average prediction among five firms,
UBS, Citi, JP Morgan, Goldman Sachs and Morgan Stanley, pointed
to a 4.6% increase in real GDP this year, down from 5.2%
expected for 2023.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

However, China faces significant economic challenges for 2024,
including high corporate and local government debt levels that
threaten financial stability and growth. The real estate market has
entered deflation, leading to adjustments in property investment
and construction. Although consumer spending has rebounded,
domestic demand remains weak due to structural issues and
demographic changes. Slowed industrial production growth is
affecting the manufacturing and export sectors. In response,
authorities focus on reducing financial risks by tightening
regulations and oversight in the banking and shadow banking
sectors. These factors collectively shape China’s economic outlook
for 2024.

The impact of reshoring initiatives on manufacturing and supply
chains has been profound, significantly affecting trade volumes
and investor confidence. The uncertainties surrounding China-E.U./
U.S. relations have further complicated the situation, leading to a
more cautious approach from foreign investors. This climate of
uncertainty has not only affected direct investments but also
rippled through Hong Kong’s broader economic activities,
including its pivotal real estate sector. The real estate market,
particularly commercial and luxury residential properties, may
witness a decline in foreign investment.

In the 2024/25 financial budget, the Land Sale Programme will
encompass eight residential sites (capable of providing
approximately 5,690 flats), two commercial sites (around 120,000
sq m of gross floor area), and one other site. The estimated private
housing land supply for 2024/25 can yield about 15,000 flats,
surpassing the annual target of 13,200 flats by approximately 15%.
Other sources of supply include the MTR Corporation Limited (the
“MTRCL"), which plans to tender its residential development
project at Tung Chung East Station Package 1, offering around
1,200 flats. The Urban Renewal Authority (the “URA”) will
contribute by advancing three projects, providing approximately
2,860 flats. Private development and redevelopment projects are
estimated to supply around 5,400 flats in 2024/25. The potential
supply of first-hand private residential units for the next three to
four years is projected to be around 109,000.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (CONT'D)

Nevertheless, the outlook for the Hong Kong private domestic unit
market in 2024 is expected to be challenging, with declining
demand, downward pressure on prices, reduced investment
activity, concerns over oversupply, and affordability challenges.
The weaker economic growth, cautious developers, and decreased
consumer confidence will likely impact overall residential property
demand, particularly for higher-end and investment-driven
properties. This, combined with the ongoing new housing supply,
will put downward pressure on prices and decrease investment
activity. Therefore, the government’s 2024 budget has indicated
that it might consider a rate cut this year. These cuts could boost
financial market sentiment and benefit retail and office leasing
momentum.

Given Hong Kong’s economic outlook in 2023 and 2024, the
government’s land sale revenue is projected to decline in 2024
compared to 2023; the government’s targeted revenue from land
premiums has seen a significant decrease of 61% year-on-year,
plummeting from HK$85 billion to HK$33 billion. This is attributed
to a weakening real estate market, reduced economic growth and
investment, cautious developer and investor sentiment, and
potential policy adjustments. The reduced investor confidence and
cautious market sentiment have significantly affected the
disappointing land sale revenue figures. The diminished capital
inflows and subdued demand within the commercial and high-end
residential property segments highlight the broader economic
challenges faced by Hong Kong amidst these geopolitical tensions.
Consequently, the revenue generated from land sales has suffered,
reflecting the broader hesitancy in the investment climate during
this period of economic volatility.

In summary, these geopolitical tensions and conflicts could pose
significant challenges to Hong Kong’s real estate market. However,
the exact impact will depend on how these situations evolve and
how effectively Hong Kong can navigate these challenges. It's a
complex issue with many moving parts, and the situation continues
to evolve. The Hong Kong government will need to implement
robust policy measures and economic diversification strategies to
mitigate these challenges and restore the city’s growth trajectory in
the medium to long term.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

In his budget speech on 28 February 2024, Financial Secretary
Paul Chan unveiled several key initiatives to diversify Hong Kong’s
industries and bolster its economic resilience. These initiatives
include increased funding for the Innovation and Technology Fund
(the “ITF”) to support Research & Development (the “R&D”) in
emerging technologies, continued investment in smart city
infrastructure, and the expansion of Cyberport for tech
entrepreneurs. The government is also championing green
technologies and sustainability through green bonds, enhancing
support for creative industries, and launching a tourism recovery
package. Additional measures encompass strengthening the fintech
sector, expanding the Wealth Management Connect Scheme,
investing in biomedical research and healthcare innovation,
promoting STEM education, attracting international talent, and
developing smart logistics systems to enhance trade efficiency.
These initiatives underscore the government’s commitment to
fostering innovation, enhancing competitiveness, and reducing
reliance on traditional economic sectors. Technology and
innovation are integral to Hong Kong's economic strategy, fostering
new industries, creating jobs, and maintaining the city’s
competitive edge on the global stage. The sustained focus on these
areas is expected to significantly influence the city’s economic
resilience and growth.

However, geopolitical tensions, sanctions between China and the
Western world, and reshoring policies pose significant challenges
to Hong Kong’s economic diversification initiatives by restricting
access to critical technologies, talent, and international markets.
These factors could impede advancements in R&D, smart city
infrastructure, and green technologies, affect the growth of creative
industries and tourism, complicate financial services initiatives like
fintech development and cross-border investment, and disrupt
supply chains essential for smart logistics. The creative industries,
healthcare and life sciences, and education sectors could face
challenges due to limited international partnerships, access to
advanced technologies, and talent. These vulnerabilities
underscore the broad impact of geopolitical dynamics on Hong
Kong’s diverse economic landscape. Consequently, these
geopolitical dynamics could escalate costs, limit international
collaborations, and dampen investor sentiment, necessitating Hong
Kong to adopt flexible and adaptive strategies to maintain its
competitive edge and achieve its long-term economic goals,
thereby ensuring economic stability in the face of ongoing global
changes.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

The intensifying rivalry between the U.S. and China and various
regional conflicts have presented considerable economic
challenges for Hong Kong. These developments have highlighted
the city’s susceptibility to global geopolitical shifts. Looking ahead,
a key priority for Hong Kong will be to navigate these complexities
to maintain its competitive edge and ensure economic stability in
the face of ongoing global changes. Technology and innovation
are integral to Hong Kong'’s economic strategy. They foster new
industries, create jobs, and maintain the city’s edge as a
competitive global city. The continued focus on these areas is
expected to substantially affect the city’s economic resilience and
growth.

The government forecasts GDP growth for 2024/25 and a real
economic growth rate of 2.5 to 3.5 per cent per annum, indicating
that the Hong Kong economy will grow by an average of 3.2 per
cent a year in real terms from 2025 to 2028. The underlying
inflation rate is forecast to average 2.5 per cent a year over this
period. This growth is predicated on the assumption that
geopolitical tensions will not worsen significantly, advanced
economies will start cutting interest rates around mid-year, and the
global economy will register similar growth as in 2024.

Geopolitical uncertainties, a relatively high-interest environment,
and reshoring policies have cast a shadow over investor and
potential home buyer confidence. This has led to decreased
investment in new construction projects and reduced sale
transactions in the private domestic unit market, particularly in the
high-end luxury flat market. As a result, many have adopted a wait-
and-see attitude, which can, in turn, decrease demand for builders’
ware.

The business environment for our builders” ware in Hong Kong is
influenced by a mix of opportunities and challenges stemming
from government initiatives and geopolitical dynamics. We
anticipate that these factors will negatively impact our turnover
and, consequently, our gross profit margin, especially for high-end
products for the luxury real estate market in the coming year.

In response to these challenges, we plan to focus more on project
sales by strengthening relationships with key customers, including
construction firms and developers. We aim to achieve this through
personalised service and tailored solutions.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Furthermore, we intend to adapt to changing market conditions
and government initiatives by embracing innovation and
sustainability. Aligning with the government’s green technologies
initiatives, we will focus more on sustainable and eco-friendly
building materials. We will promote products that improve energy
efficiency, reduce carbon footprint, and comply with green
building standards. This strategic shift not only aligns with global
sustainability trends but also positions us to serve our customers
better and navigate the complexities of the current economic
landscape.

In conclusion, the economic outlook for Hong Kong in 2024 is
cautiously optimistic, with expectations of growth. After a period of
contraction, real GDP is forecasted to expand by 2.5% to 3.5%,
supported by a rebound in domestic demand and improvements in
the labour market. However, the external environment remains
complex, with geopolitical tensions and global trade uncertainties
posing potential challenges. Despite these headwinds, the gradual
recovery of the Chinese economy and expected rate cuts may
improve investment activity and property market sentiment. While
cautiousness is warranted due to the dynamic global economic
landscape, the various supportive measures and the local
economy’s resilience provide a basis for a positive outlook.

Ongoing urban development and housing projects in Hong Kong
will support demand for our products. Still, they will be tempered
by economic and operational challenges due to broader economic
uncertainties and potential fluctuations in real estate activity. We
hope that our group turnover for 2024/25 will remain Stable &
Steady.

The Group has demonstrated resilience and adaptability in the face
of the challenges brought about by the pandemic, evolving to
sustain growth. We recognise the impact of external factors on our
operations and performance. These include geopolitical tensions,
supply chain disruptions, and currency rate fluctuations. As such,
we will continue monitoring these factors and adjusting our
strategies closely.
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Directors’ Report EZR&

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 170 to 172.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 116 to 117

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 27
and 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not declare and paid an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 September 2023 (six months ended 30
September 2022: nil).

The Board do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the

year ended 31 March 2024 (year ended 31 March 2023: HK$0.5
cent per share, totalling HK$3,594,000).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) will be held on 6
September 2024.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 3 September 2024 to 6 September
2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the right to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 2 September 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2024,
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$60,811,000 (2023: HK$63,253,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution or dividend shall be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

oge

EENMERGY S EIL
RATET THMEALEMEROS A BIEFE

BREBEXR2(REBEXR2NDETZE-NER
BRBZAT -

NAEFERBREERFAFRA2HT2LREZ
BREEE  ARBAKH-_F-_NFAR=ZRE=ZF
“HEAAANB(BRERRX) REEHERD
SBRBRIEFLE  HREFSPEBEAROGEFAZIE - A
PDREBHERFAFRLHAT S LREZNA - &
MT-B-_NFEARAZHTFEN=1TIE - K
BEIPXHERABXRRE  —HELXELQB2ER
BRoEFEICOAEERABERATNERILF
£ It BERBERBI6SERERPLI17H -

W3R - HERBEE Wik s

RRABTAFEAALTBEREEMBRD - ALEH
HEMAWEARTAFEARLTWRHHEFEMAE
NEEWIES -

AR A A

FZE-WE=ZA=+—H XA TARBEAEHS
NEFEITEZARA M % 760,811,0008 5w (=F
Z =% 163,253,000 ) - REFEFHZNAE(Z
B OFBITIR) F34% 0 RIBENTIRE FRE -
MERRIEAR N BT — ARSI FE P L IR B = R I
BN EE MR 2 T B D 5B AN PR AT 2 TR R AR BT R
;ZE °

(&N

RARZBAFBHT HZEMSFRERMIE 26 ©

L M SRR

PASTEMANHLTEXALQTDRREHDRERR
REXEFROZULEMENZEZI  MAEHS
SEBITRTCAT BAXS B AR Z PR o

<
)
2

BHTERERQA2023/24F F8H

27




28

Directors’ Report E5#H %

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2024 are
set out in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable or other purposes made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$28,160 (2023: HK$80,000).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 67, is the Chairman of the Board. He
is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a
brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 73, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 65, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over
30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists
in the strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a
cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 56, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 44, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty-one subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree
of Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company; and
a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 75, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-
executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a
director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 79, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China, an
Honorary Fellow of HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education and the chairman of Asian Construction Management
Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 67, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU is a sales director of project sales division. He possesses
over 40 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 49, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong are Independent Non-executive Directors
and were appointed for a fixed term of one year.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments, on a named basis, during the
year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not operated any share option schemes during
the year ended 31 March 2024. As at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2024, there was no outstanding share option of the
Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No other transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company and the Director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interests
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Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) BETA L (HET) - 46,496,617 - 46,496,617 6.47%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) i A (MhE2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) BT 4 (M 3) - 54,574,427 - 54,574,427 7.59%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) BN (FiE2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun X|BHFEE - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic AL - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BBIRELE - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong GhE=l Bt - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

MET

Bff5E2 :

BiES -

ZE A B BR 9 X 5 M Fast Way Management Limited
BE - WEEREREBRBAZEA o

ZE
g
@A o

ZE AR 7 R 7 12 B New Happy Times Limited 3
BoBIHEAECTBREIGRANSHEA ° BE

MR T AR RPERENE ©

H" Sa
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LR N TP G B Universal Star Group Limited 3
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2024, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2024, the following persons (not being Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO:

REHRE

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
BhRE

FERRK

TZBOF=ZA=+—H ' ATALGHEESS
RABHERBTHAR) TAQ TR KA XKD 4
BUTRIEIE S K 5 %P5 336 KT E 2 F LA
Bz REFAD

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company FARATRG REXBRH 2T
Percentage of
Personal Family Corporate share capital
interest interest interest Total issued
2X1T
Name of shareholder BREBR S MARE EQi 3¢ ATRE Hit RAE S
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited - - 91,976,507 91,976,507 12.80%
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note 1) LIM Mee Hwa Z =% (BffiE 1) 7,200,000 4,320,000 33,632,000 45,152,000 6.28%
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note 1) YEO Seng Chong 5t 4E (FffiE 1) 4,320,000 7,200,000 33,632,000 45,152,000 6.28%
Universal Star Group Limited  Universal Star Group Limited
(Note 2) (FtE2) 135,378,110 - - 135,378,110 18.83%
New Happy Times Limited New Happy Times Limited
(Note 3) (MtE3) 54,574,427 - - 54,574,427 7.59%
Fast Way Management Fast Way Management
Limited (Note 4) Limited (Fff3E 4) 46,496,617 - - 46,496,617 6.47%

Note 1: Ms. Lim owns 7,200,000 Shares directly in her own name and her husband
Mr. Yeo owns 4,320,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, in
aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd (“YCMPL”) and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in the
Company held by each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, comprised of direct
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled
corporation, is 45,152,000. Each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed to
be beneficially held.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

Note 4: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2024.

ME1: LimZtUEB S B YLEERNE 7,200,000 B% 0 &
HEX XYeo R EUE B 5 & WHHHE 4,320,000 R ©
LimZ + KYeost £ & # # 5B Yeoman Capital
Management Pte Ltd ([YCMPLJ) #9 2 ZB B 4% » [H 1t X3
YCMPLEEHI - ALImZ TR Yeo KA HEFAMN
AATRRNEA (HEEFR  EUEBUESRRRE
SR ATAR) 745,152,000 B8 o BIFIEH K 2
%0 LimZERYeo AERBHHEMETEHIBZERMA
EXRHFENERDRRENG -

MiE2  ZEAR A TR IXE B Universal Star Group Limited 3
BoBHHELE BUNAEERBEZRBERANE

@A e

MEE3 @ ZE AN B R4 & B New Happy Times Limited
B PHELEZBRBRASIKEANZHEA - FK
WA TARRPWERENE ©

MiE4 @ ZZE AN R R B Fast Way Management Limited
BE - BIFEEERAEBRBAZHA

MREXFIEEN FT2E-WNF=A=+—0 &2
AHTHNBEEMEERR (RATRESBRIM) TR
ARRGBEXBRDPRERBIES RPHRGIE
336 X MIFEZZIEMATIEF 2 NER KD ©
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other material connected transaction during the year
to be disclosed.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 7 to 9), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 11 to 25), “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems” (pages 62 to 67), “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (pages 74 to 107) and “Financial Risk
Management” (pages 139 to 146). The above discussions form part
of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 41 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 90 to 99 and form part of this Directors’ Report.

RERZ
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, our workforce was recorded at 134
employees (2023: 141). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$67,712,000 (2023:
HK$69,103,000). Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and both the
Group’s and individual performances. The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are considered
by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. Details of Directors’ emoluments during the year are set
out on page 158. The Group does not have any share option
scheme for employees.

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2024, remuneration paid to members
of the senior management is as follows:

* e T\"

FEBCR

F-FE-MFE=ZA=Z+—H  BINWATI AN 134
B(ZEZ=ZF1418)  RAIRKN(BEEEH
BY) 867,712,000/ T (ZF Z =4 : 69,103,000 &
7o) c RATRMEARZE S N2 HWEBURY - BER
SEEET AT ©

REASEEERM  mR - XEARNMA RN
EHFAEFNEE - HFWER 2 RE\EARE
BHENARARTESRSREEAR ZHFMEE
REFMEE FHNESHFMIFIBERTHE 158 - &%
B TE AR R T AR AT X o

SREEANAFHH
BEZZ-_NE=ZA=1+-HLEE XFFER
EEARZEHFMMOT :

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands i Bl AR
HK$0-HK$1,000,000 08T E 1,000,000 78 7T 2

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases R

The largest supplier = PNV
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR LT
Revenue Wz

The largest customer BRAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate BREF BT

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers disclosed above.

FEHNEARES

TAFER  AEAFTEHNBEREF A RBH
REEMEILLWT ¢

26%
58%

9%
28%

EE RECEBRRAATHIFEEEHAHELRL
AIBRITIRA5% M £ ZEMRR » #E T XA
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 84 to 90.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 198.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 11 to 25 and pages 74 to
107 respectively of the Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the

Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2024
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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Corporate Governance Report £ULERRSE

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to WBHBTERERAA(EXRADHNLEFSKFER
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and EEIRE - AFERITRINED L EEIEH - A2
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance FHfE ARFRACARUFEEKESEREZM
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting ~ RRBIRHIE @ SEBFLENREH 2HWE - AL
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has 3 its R BR & AR R ARAXA]

been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and

accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be

treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an effective and responsible board of AAFE-—TERERRRARRZEZ2(ES2))
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high 4% KRNI NERARAZHEXEK 2 AL B
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the A2QRAREKEL T (S [AKE ] EBLEFSK
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) maintain good ~FRUEAEARFAEEZENBEERXKRERR
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal £t - AEEAKHAXRREREABARNE
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the

Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’

value.
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COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles
of good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are

encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2024, except for the
following:

Under the code provision D.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.

A}
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules sets
a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Employees of the Group, who are likely possess Inside Information
(as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the “SFQ”),
have been requested to comply with provisions no less exacting
than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 32 in Directors’ Report. According
to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. Formal
letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors setting out
all key terms and conditions of their appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 29 to 32.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board and Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently and effectively.
They also take the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategies,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct through board meetings by bringing in
independent, constructive and informed comments. They form a
strong independent element on the Board.

The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in
accounting or financial management. They give the Board and
Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Independent Non-
executive Directors attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders of the
Company.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has also submitted an
annual written confirmation to the Company confirming his
independence as regards each of the factors referred to in Rule
3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are engaged by contract every year and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules. The Company considered that
all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. Subject to
approval of the Chairman of the Board, Directors may seek, at the
Company’s expense, independent legal, financial or other
professional advices from advisors independent to those advising
the Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances
to enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms on an annual basis.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation
of such mechanisms and considered that the above mechanisms
are effective in ensuring that independent views and input are
provided to the Board.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Directors’ responsibilities

All Directors devote sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held 7 regular
Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure that Directors
could obtain all related information to make an informed decision
and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the
Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration
before the meeting according to the regulations set out in the
Listing Rules and code provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 68.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors
were aware of any material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have
prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages
108 to 115).

Board proceedings

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent, in full, to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
board meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board proceedings (cont'd)

Management provides the Board and Board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable to enable Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Board papers and related
materials are in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Queries
raised by Directors are provided with a prompt and full response.
Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and Board committees and the decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
and records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover,
upon request from any Director, the Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them to
perform their duties at the Company’s expense.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.
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Board effectiveness

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and are
fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies. In addition, an
orderly succession for appointments is maintained to ensure high
standard of corporate governance of the Company. Every Director
is subject to re-election by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

To ensure Directors’ contribution remains informed and relevant,
the Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training to Directors. In addition, the Company encourages
Directors and the senior management to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which the
Group operates. Directors are timely updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various
forms of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 68.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors and officers (as defined in the Listing
Rules) arising from corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, taking the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company, encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (cONT'D) FEREELEZLE ()

() Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors () BFEALHEMEZFIFE2HERT SRR
annually without the presence of other Directors; and TES2E R

()  Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the () REAFRBRITEHL  BEFLEKES (45

effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non- ARFENITES)NES2EHBNTE -
executive Directors, and building constructive relations BUPTESSENTESZHAEZRMEZX
between Executive and Non-executive Directors. o

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His ZEZEZZXEHEESLEME  HRFEE:
responsibilities are as follows:

(@) Providing leadership for the management; (@) NSEEE;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s (b)) HITHEEBSCIRALN R 2K
strategies;

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the () ®BEBARARAREFERESLITUZER
objectives set by the Board;

(d)  Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to  (d) HNESLRHEUREBERAME TR ;
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with  (e) MASARREBRSHFHEZXRER
its stakeholders;

()  Putting in place programmes for management development () EXEBREEREEITL
and succession;

(g0 Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and (g SW&HEEEE  FIITREFELZNBY
maintaining proper internal controls and risk management ERRRERGE  AREBEBERERF R
systems as well as disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated (h) RREESZ PERNVEBTRIRITERD
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Investment Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. They
are:

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@) To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D) EECBTHNERZ2®

Audit Committee (cont'd) FREAS (£)

() To review the external auditor’s management letter, any () RENMEZHMZEBZIRNS  ZHAH2IT
material queries raised by the auditor to management about BR MBZKERUREREAEERRE2E
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control AERRRREBRIEL 2B ;

and management’s response;

(m) To review the Company’s statement on internal control (m) FTREESSHFMAETFHFRMABEXE
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to W A AR R B 2 R
endorsement by the Board;

(n)  To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the () HWREELRNENFHEZHMZEEEN
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter; PHREHZSE

(0) To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of (o) BMETAVETREFURIHZEEME
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules; B0

(p) To review arrangements that employees of the Company can  (p) RINALNEREAAERRMSICIR - AEBLKE

use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible SEMAETELE 2T EHITHREREZ
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other ZH - ZRACNBREELRHE  LALQEX
matters. The committee should ensure that proper HEEEEE AT IFERREUE S R#T
arrangements are in place for fair and independent 53
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

(@) To consider other topics as defined by the Board. (@ FNEFWHENEMBIH-

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate  tsh » EEZERLMAFTUT AL ERIREE
governance functions as below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices (@) #®IITRERITAAT 2L ERREREN (B
on corporate governance (including the board diversity REZ2ZARE RBARES2BUASM
policy, mechanism to ensure independent views of the Board FREFBRBE)  ADNESSREEN
and shareholders communication policy) and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous (b RIITKKRESERSREBARZFIIRISE
professional development of Directors and senior TlRRE
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices (c) RITRUEEAAREEFLIERKEAESE
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; ZHRRER

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and (d) #I1T - RITREBRRAREEZRIEVRE
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and MFM (0E) ; &
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code and (e) RINAXTBFEERREFTETURIE
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. AP
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)
Audit Committee (cont'd)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2023, to discuss the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and to review the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 on 24 June 2024,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the board
diversity policy, mechanisms to ensure independent views of the
Board and shareholders communication policy) and practices,
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewed and monitored
the Company’s code of conduct and compliance manual, reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at Audit Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 68.
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

#hRE BARE f
R~
BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D) EECBTHNERZ2®
Audit Committee (cont'd) HRERS (£)
Auditors’” Remuneration BB E
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the following external auditors’ BZE=-T-WMF=ZB=+—-HLFE A{F~4%
remuneration has been incurred by the Company: DU SRR SM B £
HK$'000
T
External auditors SNEERZ BT
— Audit services — EIZRS 1,760
— Non-audit services — FEZRS 216
Total Bit 1,976

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the fees to external auditors, BEZF-MHF=A=+—HIEFE  BMEKEY
amounting to HK$1,760,000 were primarily for audit services and VB33 28 A7 1,760,000 87T » EEH R TR
those for non-audit services amounted to HK$216,000, 10.9% of %5 MIFFZRSZ 2R AN216,00087T » HE%EH
the total fees. The non-audit services provided by the auditors was — 210.9% ° BEIMFTiR M2 F TS R B S SR
tax compliance services. %o

Nomination Committee REZRS
The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It REZR2T-F-—-F=A=-+EtHAKX BH
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors HRERVZFRTEER -—ERTESEAR - ®F

and one Executive Director. They are: AUTAL:
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BHAELE
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman) (HZIFRITESE - T/E)
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive Director) BEERE (HITESE)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director) BB AEE (MY IFMITESE)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly REZRSEITHRLCEE @ ATALAMIETIR
defined and posted on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendations on
the reappointment of Directors at the 2024 annual general meeting
having considered them having the required character, integrity,
independence (as appropriate to Independent Non-executive
Directors), professional knowledge and experience to fulfil their
role and to contribute to the Group, and discussed the succession
planning for the Company’s Board and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at Nomination Committee

B meetings during the year is set out on page 68.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 29 to 32.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. Board appointments will
be based on objective criteria having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee of the
Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate
and make recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board.

Since the Board was comprised with the single gender Directors as
at the date of this report, the Board aims to nominate and appoint
at least one female candidate to be our Board member no later
than 31 December 2024. In order to increase gender diversity in
the Board in the upcoming years, the Company will also
proactively provide training to our senior managements and will
take into account the factor of gender diversity when recruiting
suitable candidates for our senior management in the future.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)
Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a)

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors (except
the Chairman and/or the chief executive as appropriate). The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.
The remuneration policy of the Group (including Directors) is set
out on page 58. Details of remuneration payable to the senior
management, by band, are set out on page 39.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors; assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors. No
Director had participated in the determination of his or her own
remuneration.

The attendance of committee members at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year is set out on page 68.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on 12 June 2023. It is
currently comprised of two Executive Directors and one
Independent Non-executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony

(Executive Director and Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Investment Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Investment Committee are as follows:

(@) To review and evaluate the Group’s development plan and
strategies and to make recommendations to the Board
thereon;

(b) To review and make recommendations to the Board on key
proposals of investment (including mergers and acquisitions,
joint venture and equity investments) and financing projects
of the Group for business development purpose;

(c) To review and make recommendations to the Board on other
significant investment matters;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Investment Committee (cont'd)

(d) To review and evaluate the Group's risks exposure from its
investment projects as a whole;
(e) To review the relevant Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
evaluate whether any proposed investment project has or
would attract any disclosure or compliance obligation
thereunder;

()  To determine whether the proposed investment projects are
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a

whole;

(g) To supervise the implementation of the abovementioned
investment projects duly approved by the Board; and

(h) To review, study, evaluate or make recommendations on

other matters as delegated by the Board.

Throughout the year, the Investment Committee met once to
conduct an in-depth performance review to the Board of the
Company. The Committee also evaluated the performance of
individual asset classes and sectors and rebalanced the portfolio to
maintain alignment with our strategic objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers and minutes were provided by the
Company Secretary on behalf of the Chairman of the Board and
board committee chairmen. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
good information flow within the Board, Board policies, Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are

f; followed.
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BUSINESS MODEL, PURPOSE AND VALUES

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing, wholesale, retail and installation of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture and provision of interior design services, project and
contract management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The objective of the Group is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. In addition, the
Group commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate sustainable return to
shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Anti-corruption policy

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptance of advantages by employees and a whistleblowing
mechanism to provide guidance to employees and external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual
improprieties relating to the Group.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control system
and reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk ~
Assessment
RS
The Process of
r Internal
Control
Monitorin L 4
e A &R B 12
il

g

AERRZR

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(@) The Group financial reports are reliable;
(b) The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

REEERABEE
RESHHE
AATERNRATHE - UNERTEERE - 5
ERARIRAH - 5 R T RIS G B IRET R E

AR AT SRR H 4T R A E MR HEgS]

ESoNRITEREEAR LN EA KKK B IR TR
REINXEMERKREE  ARRAQEIRLKE

FEeEmAERNNREERABEEZRS - RER
FHRARAEANE™ - ES2TARNRERE

RAMEZRRS  ARNEREERBMME

iZ’lr?%éﬁET‘MIETfﬁﬂFi‘ﬁﬁikﬁ‘éitﬁilL%Eﬁ\E’Jﬂ
e MARERAR2BERNAEBERLRKE
é‘iﬂﬁ'ﬁﬂh@ﬂﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ °

REEERABEERENTRE

Control

Environment

EEBRIR

)}

Control
Activities
EETE

Information & “
Communication

R B IR — B AR E AR AN
LS BBARIE -

C BERRIER

(@ AEHANMSREREITE;
by HEHWNEZEMMEANZE &
(c) ZK%E’JJE%%%’JEMEWE@&‘E& cEE

& FEEREMAARENBUIERENE
e o




SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

BERE BARS | f
B~
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL MBS B K AR (50
(CONT'D)
Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd) REERRABRERENTRE (&)

The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are ~ AEEARIBEERMHEZHRIFBHOT ¢
as follows:

Control Environment YIRS

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins | B AU WBEEMTS - AREME
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason | EREE - DHTEEEN T UENSER REIT
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding | HA%RRUENAR - EEEZ2EBHL AR
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the | R#{THEFFHNAR o A - EESL XS
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will | RIESEERERHITRZERKE

influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.

Control Activities BiR{Ta

The internal control of the Group includes the following areas: AN EE B 9 PO 2B A R B 3E DL T SE 85 ¢

e Integrity and ethics o mERERRST
e Commitment to competence e HAEME
e Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation s EEBELRFREASNSS
e Management philosophy and operating style o  EEFHRZEER
e Organisational structure o HLARM
e Assignment of authority and responsibility o DIRPURMRME
e Human resource policies and practices o ANBREBEREMN
0
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)
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Information and Communication

The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution

Bt/ 81T

ME KRR

AERANREEREMUMWT AR

Governance
ESISN
B /A

Board of Directors

Ultimate responsible body
REBERE

Management
EEE

Decision-making body
p #

/;Q

)

Department /
Functional Heads
B/ B EEEE

Risk owners

EEEEA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and assess
risk associated with their operations and report to the

management for review.

1
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BERZEEE®

Governance body

EREE

EE22MAFTHRALTANFEAR Y REFR
BREMHREEE RN IBEERL o

FREACKREZCURELFA LN TIRNREER AR
BEAGMWRIT - NEREEERE  BEWSKEE -

EzEERANEE -

EEERDNREREERSHRENA  HRAR
BAASHTEARER  UEEREAREAHN

RETR o

WIRRETERREEAREEFORG - 45
RIEAHRENERSF  RRRIURITH - 5523
RIMESHEEEMAORR - AR
-

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24




SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL MBS B K AR (50

(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd) REERRABRERENTRE (&)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.

B
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with .T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the SFO
and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
has included in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential information including Inside
Information (as defined under the SFO) in order to make sure
appropriate handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in
place.

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with code provision D.2.4(e) of the CG Code. There are
guidelines to the directors, officers and all relevant employees of
the Group to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Group
is strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not
limited by the following ways:

— define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

restrict access control to inside information by employees on
a need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;

reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information to ensure that they are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality; and

The Board and the senior management review the safety

measures regularly to ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2024

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls. During the
year, the Audit Committee conducted an annual review to consider
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
(including but not limited to, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
reported the same to the Board. The Board conducted an annual
review to consider ESG performance and reporting.

During the year, the Company did not have an internal audit
department; details of which are set out on page 42. The Board
reviewed the scope and quality of management’s on-going
monitoring of systems of risks and the internal controls, examined
the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Board and Board committees. Based on the review, save as
disclosed under the section “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on
the Directors’ Report, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board
considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETING, BOARD EZ22 - EE2RBRTZEARA22UR
COMMITTEE MEETING AND ANNUAL GENERAL BREBE RS HERRRIFIUE R

MEETING AND TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee #BE-F_HNF=ZB=+—HLFEESETESS
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the REZLBTZER22W - REAFALHERR

year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows: RIFYHSFMOT -
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration  Investment General  Types of
Director Board Committee ~Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting  Training
£ 22 wHEA2 REZR2  FMER2 REZER2 RERAFX2  HURH
Executive Directors WiTES
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry kg 717 171 17 AB
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert BB EE 717 1n AB
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony BWHEEE 717 1n 1N AB
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin BONALE 717 11 AB
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun XA & 717 1/1 " " AB
Independent Non-executive Directors 14 V3 /TES
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BHEHE 717 202 1 1 11 1 AB
Mr. WAN Sze Chung RERELE 717 22 7 171 1/1 AB
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong BE Bt 717 20 n AB
Notes: B sE -
A:  Attending seminars, conference, forums and/or trainings A SHFFS - 21 - Witk Rzl
B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates B: FRRE TR REEFRE
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS SR HE

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and AAFEFEBEHERAFLRELTL S>HE - HE
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a FREEFA SV ESEFEZTESE o BREAEH
key means to enhance corporate governance standard. {HBEMERITHEAATEY > FEALTEERIE
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on the &= i o 23R & K 25 44 5 M 35 www.ebon.com.hk 3
information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company. @mE*XAEARELEZENEEMERT o
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its

financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s

website at www.ebon.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy*
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

To achieve this, the Company has established a number of
channels to maintain an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders
and the investment community. The Company is committed to
providing information to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as making
available all corporate communications on the Company’s website
at www.ebon.com.hk. The Shareholders” Communication Policy is
reviewed annually to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
the prevailing regulatory and other requirements. Effective and
timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times. During the
year, the Board reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy
and considered that it remained effective.

* For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(@ Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Please refer to
pages 4 to 5 of this Annual Report for the address of the
Company’s principal and branch share registrars.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information, send their written enquiries and concerns to the
Board to the extent such information is publicly available.
Such requests, enquiries and concerns shall be addressed to
the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

General Meetings

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the Meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures are read out at the Meeting by
the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. The
Company arranges to address questions from shareholders in the
Meeting. In addition, separate resolutions for each substantially
separated issues will be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management. An annual
general meeting is an annual significant event for shareholders and
the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All Directors
(including the Board chairman) shall attend the annual general
meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting, the
Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each Board
Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual general
meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

5RZRE (s)

BERKS
FRAECERRZRER2 UERES AR E 75 WEUR
FRAER2RBEEIRS (GRITRER2 D ESE
FAXBAD - RAXSBEREQWNE 22
RUERRKRBERE - FERDEBRETREEM
N2BRRYERHEREIKRS - REHERFXRS
ZBRETEZRCBEREM 2AREEREFRE
RARROIFZILL  AEFREZZERRR
REEFEERE2AR - REFAQAEANEEM
Mk ETAN > BREREKS LB SURETY LR
FEHARR -

BXREBRURESARRZEFCHTERATR
FREBE-HAFTABRFEZBR  ARKRSER
TREARSBE  UBRERFAABUAREZA#T
RANFREF - KRB 2ZHTRER2 LEZE
RRZRIRE o b5 AR BATREKRSHEUEEFRIE
V2 EBERBMRINE - UHRERHE

BRERCHESREBEEERFEHARELT L
FERRBNAZEENLREBEGS - REAFRS
NEERS  ULERFSEZCXRAZRMEZE
Lo 2fELZ(BREZCIE)NEERFTAEX
2 BBIFERSERRBAFRLIN  E2ZHE
EECRTZEACERSERFAFR2KRT2 L
EERMA c AARRBMTAHERRBFRS > B
BERXRFRIAE  REULBTREREAR « 21f
R RAZBIM IS 2 4R E)




COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify the Company from time to time through
Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5.  Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

6.  Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person if
a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is present
at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy
who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to use all
his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same way.
The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of
the meeting. After the closure of a general meeting, the poll
results will be published on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

Proposing a person for election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association (the “Memorandum
of Association”) and articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), in both English and Chinese, are available on the
Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews
website at www.hkexnews.hk. There was no significant change to
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 41 to 73.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:

¥

AT

”

Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2024.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which comprises of a
director of the Company. The ESG workgroup, strengthens its
approach to sustainability and seeks to facilitate our business in
strategizing, planning, recording and reviewing various
departments more effectively using data analytics and reports back
to the Board. The Board is assisted by its ESG workgroup in
overseeing implementation of ensuring that effective risk
management and internal controls are in place. The Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on page 77. This Report was approved by
the Board on 24 June 2024.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. Areas such as occupational health and
safety, product responsibility and operating compliance are
identified and considered relevant to the Group by the Board. The
Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies
and approaches in order to address these areas.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community investment. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

e Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community investment;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

*  Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome

54:3
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets out
the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company. The Board reviews and provides final
approval for the sustainability approach, strategy and performance
at least once a year.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

e Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of stakeholders.
Findings of the ESG Workgroup were submitted to the Board for
discussions and actions where necessary.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)
Engage — Interact with stakeholders

We have maintained various communication channels to interact
with stakeholder groups. This allows us to promptly understand
and address their concerns more quickly. Set out below are major

daily communication channels:

Key internal stakeholders

T )

KHESS (%)

25— 5 EES

BMNBEIEMAERESTRANGEHEHARIEE
o WWRHERMNRNTHEHFDLEEMFEERINS
e LT A EER A BRBERE :

Key external stakeholders

RN E

FTERIBIFHE
Staff members %% Board of Directors
[z i £zg
® Daily communications (Corporate * Meetings
Websites, Meeting and staff activities) -]
BEBE (ARAAY  FERETEY) « Workshop
o Staff activities TG
BIES
 Performance appraisals
RE TG

8.8
Shareholders 8@8

i R

* Corporate website
D RA

¢ Corporate communication
document
D RBERRMF

* General meetings
BRRAE

N

Suppliers
]

® Daily communications (Corporate
Websites, Meeting and conference call)
ARBERAMAE FEREERH)
® Assessments / supplier appraisals
ARAE / AR AR
* Meetings
'i#

Other stakeholders
HitiE &

Government
and regulatory
organisations
B REEAM

* Daily communications

BRBE
® Forums, seminars
B WHE

Non-government
isations

and community

FBATAEB R E

DR

* Social media
IR EE

* Community services

HERBE

* Corporate website

Customers

&

 Daily communications (Corporate
Websites, Meeting and conference call)
EREBB(ATAY BERBFESR)

* Meetings
&

 Social media

HRIRRE

%
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont'd)

In addition, we regularly carry out materiality assessment to
determine important issues to both internal and external
stakeholders of the Group. It is an on-going process as material
issues may change over time. Based on the results obtained in the
last engagement cycle and the management’s insights, the ESG
Workgroup identified 13 material topics which would have a direct
or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to create, preserve or
erode economic, environmental and social value of itself, its
stakeholders and society at large. The Workgroup asked
stakeholders to indicate topics that they considered the Group
should give priority. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders. In this participatory
assessment, five key issues were identified as being of paramount
importance: energy efficiency & greenhouse gas emission, financial
performance, occupational safety and health, product
responsibility, and customer satisfaction. These issues were
meticulously ranked according to their significance in the
assessment. Meanwhile, the remaining eight issues were not
considered as critical concerns at this stage and thus were not
prioritized in the ranking. This focused approach allows us to
concentrate our efforts on the areas that most impact our operations
and stakeholder interests, ensuring a strategic and effective
response to our most pressing challenges.

BFESS (&)
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue its
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high
sustainability impact.

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

REHRE

T )

B ESS (%)

25— S5 ET S (4)
AEFAEERE W RBIEITHER « REFRE
BEHIBRT AT IR TEITE
EAREANTHLLREBENRS

Customer privacy 2F#.\8 @ @ Operating compliance &E4&18

Energy efficiency &
greenhouse gas emissions

R RBREREHR

@ Occupational safety and health B3 %28 EE

Customer satisfaction FFWEE ¢ ¢ Product responsibility 7R #HE

4 Staff retention and development & T B Rk &R

* Financial performance gf#%%i5 ¢
3 @ Procurement practices $REEH IR
Climate resilience RIZAESH & * * Research & development #f7zE2p05¢

Local community involvement 3t E£2 82

Use of other *
4] major materials
7] Hitb X EEREA
=
=]
< i
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-
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IS
=
<]
)
bed
55
1
0
Internal Stakeholders
NEBFEF D &

Top priority BEE#®

409

O g

Materiality EE# k¥
¢ Environment RiE
¢ Economic #&&

¢ Social #&

Financial performance
40% prmzem

Product responsibility
o, 27%)
20% EmAEE

200 Energy efficiency & greenhouse gas emissions
R R E R HER

Customer satisfaction
ERREE

. Occupational safety and health
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group obtained stakeholders” priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, product quality and business
ethics

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. It involves measuring
sustainability performance and setting targets in quantitative
manner. The ESG Workgroup regularly measure, record and
analyse key performance indicators (KPIs) for the Board’s
discussion and establishment of improvement plans.

The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in total greenhouse gas
(GHG) emission, non-hazardous waste disposal, total energy use
and water consumption from the performance recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Baseline”) by the year ending 31
March 2024.
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SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING (CONT'D)

We are pleased to report that The Group has successfully met these
targets. The reductions achieved by 31 March 2024 are as follows:

GHG Emissions: Reduced by 21%
Total Energy Use: Reduced by 17%
Water Consumption: Reduced by 27%

Our success in meeting these targets can be attributed to several
key initiatives:

Energy Efficiency Programmes: Implementing advanced energy-
efficient technologies across our operations.

Water Conservation Efforts: Introducing water-saving measures and
technologies.

Employee Engagement: Fostering a culture of sustainability among
employees through training and awareness programmes.

Building on our success, The Group is setting new, more ambitious
targets for the coming years to further reduce our environmental

footprint. These include:

Further GHG Emissions Reductions: Targeting an additional 6%
reduction by Year 2027.

Enhanced Waste Management: Aiming to decrease non-hazardous
waste by 6% by 2027.

Increased Energy Efficiency: Striving for a further 6% reduction in
total energy use by 2027.

Advanced Water Conservation: Setting a goal for an additional 6%
reduction in water consumption by 2027.

Our commitment to sustainability remains strong, and we will
continue to:

Invest in innovative technologies and practices to improve
environmental performance.

Engage with stakeholders to align our sustainability goals with their
expectations.

Monitor and report on our progress transparently and regularly.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute to
the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 86.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year. The Group has set to reduce total GHG
emissions per employee by 6% by 2027 from the Baseline.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 88. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

R4

RERAFNBSREERERRK  BEIRERAAR
B B ERERRFERIARFREL DT -
BRIMNEEUNTREZSERTHIWES - HELE
b 35 B 2 PR ER AR 9 8208 BA BRI B4R B &R o EH AR
WERTERMAREIR > FMATEATERIET
T BRTEMRREN « ZAB DN AFLERK
RERPBMER—2D

ATHERY
BINEBEESEHREERBELNERE > AihiZH

BESFHREENLEHTRZE5% - REERME
HfEEELA T 86 ©

RNZHRXEHEYMEFiE UREREEZE
Bk NTRDTHAE AR S5 RWAHEER - bt
SN RNBMATEALNKETIR 2T EER
AHRXBEE2BER  BERNUWZHZ ARR—I
B o MKHES TEN AR KRERGHIT - K&
BABMERARER, R+ HIHS o FTAREE » RNEH
HEZHNERESHERNRE - REATITRIE =
E_LERERRANEERAHREENEEL
D 6% °

FEAENBFHUREEERFY - RS HTIT
WRLBFHRHE  FIERTHEBR - BEER
MERBREXNPIZELE - TAFE - XEFHT
ZANEXREERFDLENRE




* e q‘\"

ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) HIR (5)

A1 Emissions (cont'd) ATHER (£2)

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility FTEEFYWUTER | WAIEEERNEKD K o FAEF
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to E & AEAHAEZEEXLERAVLBHRIE o &
non-hazardous waste handling during the year. The Group has set KRBT HE-—"FT-_tFHEERANTEREY
to reduce non-hazardous waste disposal per employee by 6% by #ZEBE2MNEELRED 6% °

2027 from the Baseline.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BRHREE GERE1) () 0.004 0.005
NOx (tonnes) K& (1) 0.003 0.005
SOx (tonnes) FRE L () 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) 59T () 0.000 0.000

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BESKHREECEE1R2)

(CO,e tonnes) (ZE Y En) 439.491 434.219
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes) HEEFRGEE) (ZEHmYEn) 11.960 14.171
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO,e tonnes)  [EEHHK Gl 2) (=& 5S4 2M) 427.531 420.048
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area B {UHEERAEEER GEE2)

(CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZEhmEEMN F5K) 0.064 0.055
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) BEREAMRZEHER CE?2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEhmYEM BR) 3.393 3.231
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BUKEERNEREE GBE1KR2)

per floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZEmE e F5K) 0.066 0.057
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEEANHHREECER1R2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEmEEn ER) 3.488 3.340

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)' EERFYTELE ()

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) TEEF¥ =4 5.8 (1) 9.113 8.820
Total non-hazardous waste produced BUEHEERATELTERF

per floor area (tonnes/m?) HE (I FHHK) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced BERAFMFTEXERREY
per employee (tonnes/employee) BE( ER) 0.072 0.068
! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible. ! BERFYNREBHUTEE -
BHRTRRERDT202324F 55 85
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have been replaced by LED
spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower the indoor
temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but maintains
approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out fluorescent
lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy and we will
also keep an eye on the latest power-saving fluorescent lamps. The
Group has set to reduce total energy use per employee by 6% by
2027 from the Baseline.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) HIR (5)

A2 Use of Resources (cont'd) A2 R A (£2)

Water ¥/

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every SHABKIIAEIERR  kRELXZLERWTVE
drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff MWEBEELEINHE  SHHATIREMDAK -

members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps At XIE B A KB RBEBRRAEL » kR
with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water flow  FATHERTHREREBETREGKRE < R
when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of ~HRER&HNE - RII@ T HE K& KRR (R
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart RN - REFTE - BEEFRIKIT) - KEHS
green design) to the market. The Group has set to reduce total HXIE=ZF-tFHEBERANEFEKENE L
water consumption per employee by 6% by 2027 from the B4 6% - BFHRIEER » T ELEMAERER -
Baseline. There are no refrigerant emissions to account for within ~ HCBE 1 AR TR REHERE -

Scope 1 due to the limited nature of the data, which fails to provide

a comprehensive depiction of the actual scenario.

Total energy consumption (MWh) BEREAEE GRELAY) 709.202 705.351
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)? BEREEE CKRAT)? 41.931 49.593
Total direct energy consumption BUMEERNEZRERIES

per floor area (MWh/m?) GERE,FF5K) 0.006 0.007
Total direct energy consumption BERANEEREREEE

per employee (MWh/employee) CkER/BR) 0.333 0.381
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) [B#EZEER EEE CRRA) 667.271 655.758
Total indirect energy consumption BAUSEERNEZEREEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) (JkEE,F %K) 0.100 0.086
Total indirect energy consumption BREEANREERIES

per employee (MWh/employee) (KErN,BR) 5.296 5.044

Water consumption (m?) FEkE (MLFTK) 780.480 868.680

Water consumption per floor area (m*/m?)  B{A#EERNZEKE
(LF5KFFHK) 0.117 0.114
Water consumption per employee BERAMNEKE(LHXK BA)
(m3/employee) 6.194 6.682

Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMEEE () 1.603 2.025

Total packaging material per floor area BUMEERNERMEEE
(tonnes/m?) (W, "SFF5K) 0.000 0.000
Total packaging material per employee BERANBEMBLEE
(tonnes/employee) (WM, R) 0.013 0.076
2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US. 2 BFRIBEIA USTTHE ©

‘2 AT RRA R A 2023/24% F 5 87
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 86.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) YUHFELE ()
Office paper (tonnes) P AE R ()
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENTI A4 (M)
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change

* e q‘\"

IRIE (%)

A SR

Climate Change is undoubtedly one of the greatest challenges SEZEATHERALXHIGHEAREIZ— HREZ
facing humanity. The World Economic Forum’s Global Risks FE(=F==—F£RRKIRE)BIBRTHRK
Report 2022 ranks climate action failure as the top long-term  JIABAMN KR AL TARR+EF~ERTE
threat, giving rise potentially to the most severe impacts over the  HIEM - Fit » KA EBITIRFIREBSREHLA
next decade. Therefore, we aim to build resilience to climate FERALIE @ LK I E &SR A RIS KE N M
change by identifying and managing climate change risks and NSBEZEXNRES » HEBSBREUNEKNEEZ
opportunities and by developing strategies to adapt to and to &M -

mitigate the impact the climate change on our operations.

The table below sets out our findings of significant climate-related ~ TREIEAIXNE R SIRME XX RHIBHITHEE

risks and opportunities:

Physical risks
KAR KR
Acute physical risks, such as super typhoon and

extreme weather events
MRHSRE RS - BlaniB 58 & K R Rim R SS= 4

Chronic physical risks, such as rising temperature
@M RARXE - HIINSIR A

Transition risks

HEXE
Technology risks, such as use of green technology
FEARRE - flanfe AEgERAR

Market risks, such as shift towards green products
W - flng e m B ERT

Market risks, such as higher insurance premiums

MR - Bl anR B2 48 AN

Green products
KB m

g

More spending on repair and to improve adaptive
capacity of premises

RIS R AR S WMl BRI RE H MY AR X TT 32

Business closure, leading to loss of revenue

Fil - SRR K

More spending on cooling

12 IR AR R TT X

Increased cost of raw materials

JR AT AN I

Substitution of existing products with eco-friendly
options

AT MR A

Higher insurance costs

R B AR A48 1

Increased revenue because customers are willing
to pay more on green products using advanced
technologies

Sl 1 A0

‘
D
A
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change (cont'd)

Our near term targets are to adapt to impacts of climate change.
With extreme weather occurring more frequently, we place
sandbags in low-lying areas and install floodgates when heavy
rainfall is approaching. Our premises are well-maintained with
resilient elements so as to lower potential damages resulting from
extreme weather and attain better insurance packages. We make
use of e-communications to keep close contact with staff members,
customers and suppliers to ensure business continuity in place. We
provide a range of products with green features to the market.

In long term, we endeavour to reduce carbon footprint in our
operations to help mitigate climate change. The Group has set a
reduction target of 6% in total energy use and total GHG emission
from the Baseline by the year 31 March 2027. We regularly
monitor our progress for review and continuous improvement, in
addition to reporting the performance on an annual basis.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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SOCIAL (coONT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B1 Employment

As at 31 March 2024, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 126 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’” Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer. All staff
members are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution, irrespective of their gender, age, disability, family
status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to employment issues during
the year.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)
B1 Employment (cont’d)

comprised of:

Gender #31

462%

Turnover rate BERER
11.97%

Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management 2021.

Age group F R4 5

Turnover rate R

4.6% \

Turnover rate BEREZR
50%

. Below 30
=R
30-50
=tEAtm,

Over 50
BBA

Turnover rate B
13.42%
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All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is

Our Group’s turnover rate for the year is 10.16% which is lower
than the overall turnover rate of workforce in Hong Kong is 10.3%.
According to the turnover rate and vacancy rate published by RE—F_—FEBANFREEZLRAHTHAR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report %% « £ 2 RERRS
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Turnover rate BB
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing health and safety guidelines)

During the reporting year, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in our Group
regarding the environment, labour standards, occupational health
and safety, anti-corruption or data privacy. Warehouse and shop
frontline staff members are under supervision to ensure they work
safely. All staff members, before going to construction sites, have
attended safety training. When entering construction sites, they are
equipped with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

In view of the outbreak of Coronavirus, we have continued to
implement the following measures to safeguard the safety of our
staff members, such as:

e Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace

e Place air purifiers in workplace

e Provide surgical masks, disinfection products and rapid test
kits to all staff members when they need

e Take body temperature of staff members

Number and rate of work-related HE=ZF (BIELIREE)

fatalities occurred in each of the BFRITHNABK
past three years including the b
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SOCIAL (conTD) o)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd) BRARTITEMR (%)

B3 Development and Training B3R R

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working ~ A&EHN R TEEF K - B3 R EHESMH TEHR

5 -EERSEAHBRITHEZIRSLERER -
BNEMEESTZNENEER - WERTERIER
BUMRATER -

environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees. A
wide spectrum of training programmes is provided to cater the
needs of staff members across different roles and positions.

Set out below are some training and development programmes: AT ABoEINRERSGSE

94 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

e Professional development: Product e TUXRR:Fm
e Compliance and legal programme o AMREEREF
*  On-board training o AHREEI
e Health and safety training o RESZEIFI
The percentage of employees trained BRI R ER KNS
by gender and employee category ZYEABDLE 100.0% 100.0%
Gender — male MR — B 100.0% 100.0%
Gender — female MR — Z 100.0% 100.0%
Category — managerial x5 —BEE 100.0% 100.0%
Category — general office A3 — — R CER 100.0% 100.0%
Category — frontline/operational 3 — ik BiE 100.0% 100.0%
The average training hours completed per 2RI K R AR B
employee by gender and BERATRZIIN
employee category E TR 1.215 1.214
Gender — male MR — B 1.424 1.243
Gender — female PR — 0.966 1.179
Category — managerial x5 —EEE 0.875 2.688
Category — general office KB — —pRER 0.714 0.737
Category — frontline/operational KR — Bk EiE 1.697 1.576




SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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SOCIAL (coNTD) e E)
Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) BRARTS TEMR (L)
B4 Labour Standards B4 T &N

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of HABFHEEELIALLHNRMAEN  HEFR
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour. EABHIFITRET R - ABRENFSEZEN
To ensure we are legally compliant, we check applicants’ identity — E - BIT@&ERIREW S 4 - BEMINIOFRRHR
including their age and eligibility for employment. Regular reviews W& # - ZITEHXN BAEN (BFERBEREF) #1T
on our employment practices (including recruitment procedures) & idUBRZERT o EAIEE - BHFIRETH
are conducted to ensure we operate in a fair manner. Any case of AREIEZEPE  HFLENLREEE -
illegal, forced and child labour will be investigated and escalated

to the management where necessary.

B5 Supply Chain Management B5 (R 5 4% B2
The number of major suppliers, based on invoice amount, by HAREHMS @ KX oNWETEH/NEHE N
geographical region is indicated below: T

Note: The definition of “major suppliers” refers to suppliers of products and/or sub- K3 : [ E BRI | HE LIEA K H @ EAFH N RBHET 1
contractors of services to which the Group incurred purchases exceeding BAALHTRENER RS DS
HK$1 million.

«
\
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont'd)

As our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders along
the supply chain, we strive to make sure that sustainability
considerations have been embedded in our procurement practices.
Our Environmental and Social Policy is in place to facilitate
communication and align our sustainability expectations, including
legal compliance, anti-corruption policy, environmental protection,
workplace health and safety, employment practices, with our
suppliers and sub-contractors.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards.

We conduct appraisals to evaluate performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors. Factors assessed include production capacity,
technical capability, quality control systems, personnel quality and
sustainability performance. The results determine which suppliers
and sub-contractors deemed high risk and require further
consideration in future purchases. Appraisals are made at least
annually to ensure our supply chain stays aligned with our vision.
During the year, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had significant actual or potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights or labour practices.

To mitigate supply chain risk, we adopt multiple sourcing strategies
to avoid over-reliance on any one vendor. Our five largest
suppliers in aggregate contributed to less than 30% of our total
purchases during the year.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we advocate the adoption of green features in product selection,
such as water flow control and FSC-certified materials. We give
preference to those who have made strong environmental
commitments and those produce in close proximity to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation. We will continue our efforts
in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

Number of active suppliers
By region: Hong Kong
Non-Hong Kong
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish strong
customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products, in terms of purchase value, originate from Europe where
rigorous product testing regulations and requirements are in place.
Nevertheless, we carry out a number of measures to ensure product
safety, such as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

During the year, there was no product recall for safety and health
issues in relation to products sold by us; there was no substantiated
complaints received. And we did not receive any complaints
lodged with the Consumer Council.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont’d)

We protect our proprietary position by registering trademarks in
markets of presence and in development. We respect others’
intellectual property rights and conduct trademark searches to
avoid infringement.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purposes. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We did
not receive any substantiated complaints regarding breaches of
customer privacy or loss of customer data during the year.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct (the
“Code of Conduct”) that complies with HKEX expectations on
corporate governance and the Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s anti-corruption policies. Our staff handbook has
outlined such code of conduct to all staff members including
prevention of bribery.

Sub-contract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on sub-contract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism for staff members
and business partners to report any potential bribery or other
misconduct behaviours. All cases are treated with strict confidence.
The Managing Director is responsible to implement such
mechanism while the Audit Committee is responsible to review.

The Code of Conduct and anti-bribery training is included in the
induction programme of all staff members. Our conditions of
employment require compliance with the Code of Conduct.
Additionally, anti-corruption training materials were circulated to
the Board of Directors during the year.

There was no legal case of corruption brought against our Group
or its staff members during the year.
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SOCIAL (CONTD) )
Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd) BRARTS TEMR (L)
B8 Community Investment B8 # X R #

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local ZAEHABIRRBAREZAE®R ZEX o REH
community wherever it operates. Charitable and other donations FEHERNEHZZEREMBREH N 28,1608 T
made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$28,160. We = EATANEXZHHFRFHER > FEEFE12PMNE
believe that support to communities does not limit to donations but  ETIfE -

also 12 hours for voluntary works.

We also encourage our employees by meeting to actively HMNTBELILUEBAIRRSSHXES  HE
participate in community initiatives, believing that their HERMEAEMNMEXTERERDOENR - HA418
contributions will create a positive ripple effect throughout the EXUS B HERBIREHAERMAK o
neighborhood. By caring for society today, we pave the way for a

brighter, more prosperous future for the generations to come.

Distribute food to the elderly E.Bon Interior Design Competition x HKU space
BERMARE TRIITERR LB RBEEEEBR
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company
at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk
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Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
BE - —REER
KBS ik EMKF 2% (TUR)
Subject Area A — Environment
FETEA— IR
Aspect A1: Emissions
REAT : Y
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 84
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIKE BRESRRESEHR - mARTHHES - BERTERAVNTEEN : B=F
@ BER
(b) BIFX KT AEEREIWNEKEERAL
HIB R} o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Comply 85
KREEGIEIRAT HER P2 R AR R HE R - B<F
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Comply 85
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
REGRIEIRAL.2 EECGEE D MERAEGCEE2) EESAHERE URITE) R (NER)BE g5
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Explain 85
REGRIEIRAL3 FEERERAYMEE (UEITHE) R (MEMA) BE - i3
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Comply 85
intensity.
KEGMIEIRAL4 FFEEXERFNEE (UMIHHE) R WER) BE » 8P
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 84
KEGHIEIRALS R AT SV HER R B AR R A )X L BARPT RIS IR © B<F
KPI'AT.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 85
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
KREGMIEIRAL6 HRLBEEREERFWNTGE  RERFTITZAVRK B R R WA E XL B iR BF
FRREEV SR -
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
REA2 : BRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 86-87
materials.
—MRIKE BRERRR (BIERLR - KREMEM R WBEE - B=F
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in Comply 87
total (kWh in "000s) and intensity.
REGMIEIRA2.1 REBUSNWEER /REEER (B8 - S5UH) BEE (UTANTRETE) R B
BE e
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Comply 87
KESGHIEIRA2.2 BRKEREE - 8P
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 86
KEGRIEIRA2.3 R T S A RE IR BE A R as B AR R IR B IX & B AR TR ERH 5 IR o B<F
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 87
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
KREEGMIEIRA2.4 R RBUE AR LRI BEMEE - RIS AKX EBIRR NAEIXLER beiS3
FRATSRENE L IR
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, Comply 87
with reference to per unit produced.
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and KPls
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Compliance Reference
Description level (page)
Ei:ipu AMKF SZ (RR)

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Comply 88
natural resources.

REBGRIEIRA3.1

— R R BURAEAT AR R RRBUFERS BRSO BOR B
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 88

resources and the actions taken to manage them.

HRA SFDNIERRRBFNEAZOR S RMEREXZBOTE B

General Disclosure

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Comply 89
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RIRE RERMNEER TN RTAFTEZBHERSRERBEOIE - ey

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Comply 89-90
those which may impact the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

RELIEIRA4.1 HRBERTELWRITAFTERMNERSEEREE - REXTE) o gsF

Information on: Comply 90-91
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

— R E BRFNRBRE - BERE - TERH - B FENS - 2k REAM B
REAMSBRER
@ BER
b  BIFWETAEERRBHEREEZ RS
7R o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Comply 91-92
group and geographical region.
REEEMIEATBIT ZEA) - RAKE (MERERR) - FRARIRIBXI D HER DK - 5
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Comply 92
REEEYIEIRB1 .2 AR FERARIR XK 5 R RRAER o EF
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: RESRE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 93
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RIKE BRERZETHERERAERAERRLEREN By
(@) BE R
b)  EFXRETABEREWHOEREERAH)
B R o
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Comply 93
including the reporting year.
KEGRIENFB2.1 HE=ZF (BEIRFE)SFRITHMABRRLER- g
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comply 93
REGMIEATB2.2 EIHREATERE - )
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Comply 93
are implemented and monitored.
KEESRIEIRB2.3 BARFRANBILRESZ 2K - URAXRITRERGE - =7
Aspect B3: Development and Training
REB3 : KRR
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 94
work. Description of training activities.
—RINE BREFARRAET THERRNHIRRFEEOEE - #HRIFIES g
KPI' B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Comply 94
senior management, middle management).
REEEBIEARB3.1 ZHAREAX (MSHERR - PREER) MONZIIRABIL - EF
KPI' B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Comply 94
category.
REEEMIEATB3.2 BURRRRAXANKS  BHERATRZ UK FIILK - B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EEB4 : 55 TEN
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 95
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIKE BXRAHLETIRBHFTIH : gy
@ BR IR
by  BFXRETABEREMEHAERERZRAH
By o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Comply 95
forced labour.
KESRIENT B4 ERAR I BRAGINEREARRET KRBT - sy
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Comply 95
KEERIEITB4.2 HRE R IBAUE R EHEBRE RN R B D IR o g7
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Operating Practices
BB A
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
R B5 : HNEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Comply 95-96
—RIRE BRI ENITNE RS X EBER - iS5
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Comply 96
KEGMIEIRBS.1 XKD NEREHRE - B<F
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where Comply 96
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
RESMIEHRB5.2 FRAXRIEAHNENBRE - ERTEXEOOHARHRE - URBAXIITR ey
WETTE ©
KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the Comply 96
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RBERIEIRB5.3 R B RIRB MBS N THRERE SRR - URAXNITRESRT B<F
Pz
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and Comply 96
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RBHMIBFRBS5.4 FIREHEE N NEES BRMR R R RSO - URBRPITRERGE - B<F
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
REB6 : 7= mFE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 97
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RWE BXRARHFGABRSHRRESZ: - & BERLRBE LRI EN B<F
@ BE R
(b) B RTABEREENEREE RS
B RE -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Comply 97
health reasons.
RELIMIEITB6.1 EESEEETREHTERESREEAMARKNE DL e
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are Comply 97
dealt with.
FRBERIEIRB6.2 BIRXT R RSRIFHE AR BT o B<F
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property Comply 97
rights.
KBS MIEIFB6.3 R S 45 R AR PR FIR =B REVR B o B<F
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Comply 97
KBS MIEIRB6.4 AR EKXESRR " REWRER <P
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Comply 98
implemented and monitored.
RBHMIEIRB6.5 HRETE R MR R BB » URBRPITRERTSE - B<F
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BHEB7 : R&5
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 98
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIKE BRBFILIENG - 13 ~ BIFROEBERE - B=F
@ BER
b)  EFXRETABEREEHOEREERAH
#BR o
KPI' B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Comply 98
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
REELBIEARB7 .1 TLHRBANETASHEARRACFENTIFIARFNHHRE RIFIAER - g
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they Comply 98
are implemented and monitored.
FRERIEIRB7.2 RSB R EIREF - URAXIITREETTZE g
KPI' B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Comply 98
REGMIEATB7 .3 HRAMESK A TRENRSTIZY - g
Community
#HX
Aspect B8: Community Investment
REBS : HXRHE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Comply 99
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.
—RE BRUMKSERTBETAEEAEHXFTENHRRALSEFD2FRIEXF B
TEVER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Comply 99
RESMIEHRBS.A TIETREEEE - g
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Comply 99
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective of Verification

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
engaged by the E.Bon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 599) “E.Bon”
to undertake an independent verification of its Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“the Report”). The Report stated
the economic, environmental and social performance of E.Bon in
the period of Tst April 2023 to 31st March 2024 for its major
operation in Hong Kong.

The aim of this verification is to provide a reasonable assurance on
the reliability of the report content. The Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Appendix C2 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our evidence gathering process was
designed to obtain a reasonable level of assurance as set out in the
standard for the purpose of devising the verification conclusion.
The extent of this verification process covered the criteria set in the
ESG Guide of the SEHK.

The verification process included verifying information relevant to
reporting and management procedures, including stakeholder
engagement methods and result, and materiality assessment
processes. In addition, system and process for collecting, collating
and reporting sustainability performance data were verified. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the selected representative
samples were also thoroughly examined during the verification
process.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (coNT'D)

Independence

E.Bon is responsible for the collection and presentation of the
information presented. HKQAA does not involve in calculating,
compiling, or in the development of the Report. Our verification
activities are independent from E.Bon. There was no relationship
between HKQAA and E.Bon that would affect the independence of
HKQAA for providing the verification service.

Conclusion
Based on the verification results, HKQAA has obtained reasonable
assurance and is in the opinion that:

e The Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Guide of the SEHK;

e The Report illustrates the sustainability performance of E.Bon
in a clear, comparable and timely manner; and

e The data and information disclosed in the Report are reliable
and complete.

Nothing has come to HKQAA attention that the selected
sustainability performance information and data contained in the
Report has not been prepared and presented fairly and honestly, in
material aspects, in accordance with the verification criteria. In
conclusion, the Report reflects truthfully the sustainability
commitments, policies and performance of E.Bon, and discloses
transparently their sustainability performance that is commensurate
with their sustainability context and materiality.

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

KT Ting
Chief Operational Officer
June 2024
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To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E.Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 116 to 197, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2024;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (coNT'D)

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision

for inventory obsolescence.

Key Audit Matter
XEFEITEM

Provision for inventory obsolescence
HrEHERE

Refer to Notes 2.3.4, 4.1 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements for the disclosures of the related
accounting policies, judgements and estimates.
KXTFHERSUBER - AW RAEITTEE  B2RSEeWSIRERNE
234-41K19¢°

As at 31 March 2024, the Group held net inventories of
approximately HK$169,712,000 after provision of
obsolescence.
FT-ZE-ME=ZA=+—A>
A81£9169,712,000 87T

BREATHRINKZEERERFR

Management assessed the provision at each period ended
for obsolete or slow-moving inventories. In determining
the amount of allowance required for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories, management evaluates the ageing of
inventories, their historical and estimated future sales
pattern and other factors and compares the carrying value
of inventories to their estimated net realisable value.
EEEWESMRAR SN HEERERE - TEESH RIFH
FRAFREZF TN EEEITEERIKE - AL RMETTRRHE
ERARAEMEER  ALREFRIKEESHMATTRISE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN FIT WAL ERRF ISR

Our audit procedures in relation to the provision for
inventory obsolescence included:
BRI EREE 2 FITRFEE

We understood and evaluated the key controls by
which management reviews on inventory provision
including procedures on periodic and annual
review of obsolete and aged inventory, provision
for inventory and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors. We validated the key controls that the
Group has implemented to estimate the provision
for inventory obsolescence;
BEMNTHRRIMEEREEFRHERRENREH  BEE
HRFEFASMNEKIBEER FHRESENERF  HET
ZRMEUTTWEENRENEME S X EFZHKFRIT
HERBRGANEENE - HMNBIET SHEDANMEIT
PULINEER ¢ 7 & JITEN i Db S 2k ol

We understood, assessed and challenged the
appropriateness and reasonableness of the
assumptions adopted in the provision policy and
basis of identification of the obsolete and slow-
moving inventories by referencing to their ageing,
historical and subsequent sales patterns and
estimated future sales;

BMNTH  WERRETREBRPARBBRNEEN
REEN  ABISETAKK  MEREEZHERAR
RITARKREE T B RITEIRBIT A R T RAOEE |
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Key Audit Matter
XEFITEM

The identification of inventory obsolescence and
determination of estimated net realisable value require the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including their
nature, ageing, latest selling price, and expectation of
future sales orders. The estimates are subject to
uncertainty of market trends, customer demands and
fashion trends.

AR SRR REEGIT RN HERTRFEHERA R - &
FEEMMR - K& - BOEEN RN AREEIT LT - BRI
Zhipad  BERERRATEBSETHREREFIEM

We focused on this area because of the significance of the
gross inventory balance to the consolidated financial
statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the provision for inventory obsolescence.
ENTETUROAEDBETEFRESFNGEMFSRENEEM AR
EE N EREE S RAMEITRAY -

KEFITEI (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNHFITMALLEXBFITER

— We tested, on a sample basis, of the accuracy of
the ageing report of inventory against goods receipt
notes;

AT R S B A 1 B KR AR S AR TR

— We tested, on a sample basis, the sales records of
inventories against sales invoices of the past 2
years and the inventories utilisation rate to ensure
the accuracy and completeness of provision for
inventory obsolescence;

BRI ERFENHERTHEN A FREELCRES
BRAAR DBAETHNERRENERMERTEME

—  We tested, on a sample basis, of estimated future
sales against secured sales orders received from
customers;

FAXRK AR 2 S REEET R HAEN 3k 1T KRR
sER

—  We also assessed the estimated net realisable value
by comparing the estimated selling price and sales
quantity of inventories with the corresponding post
year-end sales data; and
BNTESHRERNEITTENREERESHENMNER
RHEEHRE  WEEITTRIEE S &

— We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of inventory provision.

BN AR R ZITENEARERMLE -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the
judgements and assumptions made by management in
relation to their assessment for provision of inventory
obsolescence were supportable by the available
evidence.

EFAHIITHRERF > BRINANEEEREN IR EFHESNITE
FreEH B HI M R BRI AT A IE R X85 -

wHFERERAT202324558 111



Independent Auditor’s Report R &Mk S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&%®E K@%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE=-F-ME=A=+—-ALFE

2024 2023
—ENE B =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(ipz3 FERT FHET
Revenue g 5 459,848 454,764
Cost of sales HERAR 9 (280,638) (274,158)
Gross profit E| 179,210 180,606
Other income HAbug A 6 1,291 782
Other (losses)/gains, net Heb (SH), W& 858 7 (3,088) 1,003
Net impairment losses on financial TRRENRTZ
and contract assets BIE T FSH 20 (1,195) (2,437)
Distribution costs paliz] RN 9 (92,687) (90,141)
Administrative expenses THHF= 9 (69,054) (71,544)
Operating profit ZE R 14,477 18,275
Finance income ESION 1,924 1,886
Finance costs 55 2% A (5,539) (3,492)
Finance costs, net WA 2] 10 (3,615) (1,606)
Profit before income tax RN 10,862 16,669
Income tax expense FRFERFAX 13 2,319) (2,596)
Profit for the year attributable to equity &2 FFEH R & FERF
holders of the Company 8,543 14,073
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2EKE(SH)
Items that have been/may be B HETWHEFIXRERS
subsequently reclassified to H T B
profit or loss
Exchange gains/(losses) on translation MEFMLEMFIRERZ
of financial statements of SCRE(51H)
foreign operations 155 (410)
Items that will not be reclassified HERT2EH D RERE
subsequently to profit or loss MR
Losses on revaluation of properties EfFFERYILZ SR
held for own use 16 (7,576) (3,422)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of BXREMGFEERMLZ
properties held for own use BRI 25 1,250 552
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Notes
iipz3

Other comprehensive loss for the year, SEHMLESHR @ RELE

net of tax
Total comprehensive income EARFEENSFE

for the year attributable to equity 6 =R

holders of the Company
Earnings per share BROEF

(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (AR BNl )

— Basic and diluted — EARRME 15

2024 2023
—EMEF —EI=HF
HK$/000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
(6,171) (3,280)
2,372 10,793

1.19 cents B

2.22 cents 4l

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income Ll k4G4 £ Ek % & RS REM T E — H % o

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %ZR& MR &

As at 31 March 2024 F=Z-WE&=A=+-H

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Deferred income tax assets
Retention and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories

Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Current income tax recoverable

Derivative financial assets

Time deposits with maturity over
three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

1 1 8 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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HHEBE =N ANEBRER

NERAEENY
BR=
R
RRBFEENSN&E
RS
E&
Bz

Notes
B E

16
17
25
20

19

20
20

24

21
21

26
27

2024 2023
—EZME 5=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TR
282,812 302,032
37,344 35,902
5,325 5,352
4,840 4,744
330,321 348,030
169,712 144,909
115,145 94,298
3,837 3,269
4,394 3,183
- 223
30,309 23,365
57,377 123,296
380,774 392,543
711,095 740,573
71,884 71,884
423,609 424,831
495,493 496,715



2024 2023

—EMEF —EI=HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ip= FET FBxT
Liabilities R
Non-current liabilities IEF B AR
Employee benefit obligations ERENEE 22 4,782 6,021
Lease liabilities HERE 17 19,418 8,460
Deferred income tax liabilities i 3T BT B8 1 4% 25 14,500 17,201
38,700 31,682
Current liabilities Fzh R
Trade and other payables BRI R B A BRI 22 30,977 43,254
Contract liabilities BN R 22 62,804 70,643
Lease liabilities HERMMR 17 19,406 29,143
Borrowings EEN 23 58,602 63,969
Current income tax liabilities AER TSR 4R 5,113 5,167
176,902 212,176
Total liabilities = 215,602 243,858
Total equity and liabilities BAE R A 711,095 740,573

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 197 were 116 Z 197 ANSEMEZREACLEELT =%
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2024 and were Z—EXA=Z+MA#E  FHTIHIESRREE -
signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
BHHTR B =E
Director Director
EE EZFE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be  LL_E4R& W3R )% 3 51 5 REMT BE — H 53k o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity HS&R@mEz)*&

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE=T-MEZA=Z+-HBLEE

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  feserve  eamings Total
Bx REH EfEE SAHE RAME TA#E EENE  REEN At
HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx TExr TEx TEx TEr  TEx  TEx  TExn

Balance at 1 April 2022 F-E--EMA-ALHR 60,060 1201 144,507 6,979 2,89 182 2,180 252,516 470,521

Comprehensive income for the year ~ £E4E K

Profit for the year EEER - - - - - - - 14073 14073
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ EH2E (1), i

Exchange loss on translation of financial -~ #EFMEUEHEZLATHR

statements of foreign operations - - - - - (410) - - (410)
Loss on revaluation of properties BERRNLERSH

held for own use - - (3,422) - - - - - (3,422)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of BXEHRERNLZBREN

properties held for own use - - 552 - - - - - 552
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2H(5H) /KB EH - - (2,870) - - (410) - 14073 10793
Transactions with owners SHEZEZRE
Dividends (Note 14(a)) RE (W 14(2)) - - - = - - - (60060 (6,006)
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEEEIE (HE27)

(Note 27) - - - - - - 61 (61) -
Issue of ordinary shares under right issues R K TEERR (M 26)

(Note 26) 11,824 9,583 - - - - - - 21,407
Total transactions with owners SHEEZRAEH 11,824 9,583 - - - - 61 (6,067) 15,401
Balance at 31 March 2023 FoE-z=EZA=+-H4h% 71,884 10,784 141,637 6,979 2,896 (228) 2,241 260,522 496,715

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be Ll E4& L3R 8 S REMIME — 5% o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital Exchange Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Total
RE ROEN ER#E  SHRE  RARE IRHR  EEHE  REER |t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér fEx TEz TEx Tz TEx TEx TEx  TEn

Balance at 1 April 2023 FoR-ZEMA-BEH 71,884 10,784 141,637 6,979 2,896 (229) 2,241 260,522 496,715

Comprehensive income for the year  EE4E N

Profit for the year EERA - - - - - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ H&H (55),/ Wi

Exchange gain on translation of financial R EEMLEHERE 2T RNE

8543 8543

statements of foreign operations - - - - - 155 - - 155
Loss on revaluation of properties BIERRMLERSH

held for own use - - (7,576) - - - - - (7,576)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of BXERBERNL2BAFM

properties held for own use - - 1,250 - - - - - 1,250
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE(FH)/KEEH - - (6,320 - - 155 - 8,543 2,372
Transactions with owners S5ihE%R5
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREAE (HE27)

(Note 27) - - - - - - (162) 162 -
Dividends (Note 14(a)) BRE (HE 14(2) - - - - - - - (3594)  (3,594)
Total transactions with owners SfEEz X584 - - - - - - (162 (3432)  (3594)
Balance at 31 March 2024 F-E-MEZR=1+-B4H 71,884 10,784 135,311 6,979 2,896 (73) 2,079 265,633 495,493

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be Ll E4& 2T 5% 515 BEMFE — H 5Dk o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE=-F-ME=A=+—-ALFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for settlement of disposal of
forward contracts

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Placement of deposits with maturity
over three months

Proceed from deposits with maturity
over three months

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Principal elements of lease payments

Interest paid on leases

Proceeds from trust receipt loans

Repayment of trust receipt loans

Proceeds from issues of shares under
rights issue

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2024 2023
—E-E —=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER THET
2,669 98,402
(4,928) (2,953)
(2,259) 95,449
(934) (4,427)
(10,595) (38,415)
(187,237) (73,266)
180,293 49,901
1,924 1,886
(16,549) (64,321)
4,172) (3,790)
3,533) (1,919)
(33,064) (27,128)
(2,006) (1,573)
86,550 56,115
(87,745) (48,759)
- 21,407
(3,594) (6,0006)
47,564) (11,653)
(66,372) 19,475
123,296 104,199
453 (378)
57,377 123,296
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GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th-18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and
provision of interior design services, project and contract
management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of properties
held for own use and derivative financial instruments,
which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& iR&M*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for the annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2023:

HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies (amendments)

HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates (amendments)

HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules
(amendments)

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction (amendments)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 Amendments to HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS

17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information
(amendments)

The new standards and amendments to existing
standards listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (cont'd)
(b) New and amended standards and interpretations

not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not yet
effective for the annual reporting periods
commencing 1 April 2023 and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BEESITAENE 1S (BITR)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EBSIHENE 1S (BITAR)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BFEMSREENE 165 (1BITA)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)
BEEQITENE 7 SREEBVS
REEMNE 7S (1BITA)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

EEHEBRRA M

HAUERE 2

2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BRI ERNRDRIERS
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
Fi T 22 AR R B LA

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

WERERSITTBERE S (%)

22 2ITEEE (4)
(b)  [EARRAZHIT REMGITEN R 12
%
BT 2 ENBITAREESD M
o ETZE=FNA—-BFH
NEEITHEERER - BAE
B i REZ T SR o

Effective for
accounting year
beginning on

or after
TTyRMRZE
Tz EEER

1 January 2024
—E-ME—-A—H
1 January 2024
—F-_MNF—AF—H
1 January 2024
—E-FE—HA—H
1 January 2024

—F-_MFE—AF—H

1 January 2024

Repayment on Demand Clause

EBIERES S (£181])

HKAS 21 (Amendments)

FEELITAENZE 215 (BITA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

EBRZ AR

WEMERNED] — ERAN B S JRERER
BIRZ RN E RIS K
Lack of Exchangeability

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

—FE-mWFE—HA—H

1 January 2025
—E-HF—HA—H
To be determined

BEEMSREENEI10SREE REERAREQLAREED LD ZANESHE & 5 E
SIHENEE 285 (1BITA) ER

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of adopting these amended standards and
interpretation of HKFRS and is not yet in a position
to state whether they would have a significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.

AERAEETERPZELBITE
MREBVSREENLBH
MW EETERBEEE SN ARE
BHL SR MSRR=EERE
D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSIUTBERED %)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

23 EBEARSUBEER
2.3.1 Yilb - T BERIRE

2.3 Material accounting policy information
2.3.1Property, plant and equipment

Properties held for own use are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties held for own use, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Properties held for own use are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at
the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ significantly from
that which would be determined using revaluation
values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of properties held for own use is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets
previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to the profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSITBEED ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)
2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 ERSITEERR (%)

2.3.1Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) 231 Yl - T ERRE (%)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Properties held for Over the shorter of

own use unexpired term of lease
or 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease
improvements terms or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets” useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 32.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts
and are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

Wk~ B RRE 2RI G
A fE A F R E R AR EGMEN

BELEADWITENT ¢
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(LREEH R AE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W R&M*

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSIUTBERED %)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

23 EBEARSITBEER ()
2.3.2 @A~

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.2Financial assets

e  those to be measured at amortised cost;
and

e  those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether
the group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

2.3.2.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.2Financial assets (cont’d)
23.2.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The Group’s
financial assets carried at amortised cost
comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.2Financial assets (cont’d)
2.3.0.3 Measurement (cont'd)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within “Other
(losses)/gains, net” in the period in
which it arises.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSITBEED ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 ERSITEERR (%)
2.3.2Financial assets (cont’d) 2.3.2 EHA~ (%)
23.2.3 Measurement (cont’d) 2323 118 (%)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “Other (loss)/gains,
net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.3.24 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. Details on how the Group
determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSIUTBERED %)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

23 BEARSUHEBERHE (%)
2.3.3 RIWKIKSE - RIHAR B 5k R H A BT

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.3Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due
from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade, retention and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts and returns. The Group
recognises revenue when goods are transferred or
services are rendered to the customer.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.5Revenue recognition (cont'd)

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that the
Group has transferred to a customer. In addition,
incremental costs incurred to obtain a new
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract
assets and subsequently amortised when the related
revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer. A contract
liability is recognised by the Group when the
customer pays consideration in advance before the
Group satisfy the performance obligation to the
customer.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and
furniture in the wholesale and retail market.
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods are delivered to the
customer.

(b) Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to
contractors and property developers. Revenue
from the services rendered by the Group is
recognised over time as the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset or
work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The Group
has applied the output method in recognising
the revenue from construction contracts over
time. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of
construction contracts is measured with
reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract
work.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.6Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
income tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSITBEED ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 ERSITEERR (%)
2.3.6Current and deferred income tax (cont’d) 2.3.6 FHREBLFEH (L)
(b) Deferred income tax (cont’d) (b) BIEFTEH (£)

The deferred income tax liability in relation to BEARETEEXRREYL
investment property that is measured at fair HIEE RSB A RIIREY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSIUTBERED %)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd) 23 BEARSUHEBERHE (%)
2.3.7Leases 2.3.7 M

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

— payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.7Leases (cont'd)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

— any initial direct costs, and

— restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSIUTBERED %)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTD)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd) 23 ERSUBEREH (%)
2.3.7Leases (cont’d) 2.3.7 7 (%)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16
— Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees
adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they would if
they were not lease modifications.

The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and
(c) there is no substantive change to other terms

and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to
all qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@ Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2024, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$120,000 (2023:
HK$344,000). The 50 basis point increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to United States dollar
(“US$”), EURO (“EUR”) and Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) denominated transactions.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

3

Wt 35 R ke B 2R

3.1

Tt 55 R e B 3%

REFAEX NEMSZKE - mizRE (2
FERERERISCRE) - EHERXERR
HRENK - AEARGCXNRERES
EHELMEITT 22/ ™ 7 - HEOBREX
RERAM SR ZBEETFEM o

@ FIEXKE
FEALKRBHVAREZERNER
BERZHHR R 2 - A&
Az MR Rk B EHERE BRT
TR BEFDANRITE 2 EME
/RS BARAEN RS RE
MR - REEFRITE 2EF/
R/ BN G BAERE N A
ER R -

F-E_ME=A=+—H RE
MEEZ THES0ES - MAE
HMTHERFFIE > WAERAZ
FERANEREBENEE M
B£9120,000/8 T (ZFBE==F:
344,000587T) ° 50ERZ EF T
FXEAREERIIEHEET —F
ERE B A B A AR =T o

(b) IPCRKE
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (cont'd)

As at 31 March 2024, some group entities with
functional currency of HKD had considerable
amount of trade payables and bank balances and
cash denominated in US$. Under the Linked
Exchange Rate System in Hong Kong, HKD is
pegged to US$, management therefore considers
that there is no significant foreign exchange risk
with respect to US$ (2023: same).

At 31 March 2024, if the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2023: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, there will be no
significant impact on the post-tax profit of the
Group (2023: same).

At 31 March 2024, if the EUR had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2023: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have changed as follows. The changes are
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of EUR denominated trade
payables.

Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase
when EUR

— strengthened by 5%

— weakened by 5%

- ;'HE 50/0
— 1B 5%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. There has no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is insignificant.

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D) 3 WMIKAREEw@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 3.1 MERRERE (%)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d) () 1EHEME (%)
(i) Risk management (cont'd) (i)  MEEE ()
The expected loss rates are based on the M SMEDETEFNM
payment profiles of customers and the FRRERELTHMEARTE
corresponding historical credit losses FERSHRME - HLTHE
experienced. The historical loss rates are STFUREBURREZIBEF
adjusted to reflect current and forward- B MR IEE N R
looking information on macroeconomic ZMI R R AR o

factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 EZEEL F-E-MF

March 2024 and 2023 was determined as K—ZFE-_=F=A=+—H

follows for trade and retention receivables B R U MK 5% B2, R U AR B8 FR A

and contract assets: RENARFHNSHRKREBETE
mT

Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
BB R RN RERAREL R

Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
R

s HRE TR B8 THiRE IKE#E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER T BT

As at 31 March 2024 F-E-m&E=A=+-AH
Provision on an individual basis  ®#ABIE R & 100% 1,291 (1,291) -
Provision on a collective basis ~ ZHREEERE 0.90% 100,258 (902) 99,356
101,549 (2,193) 99,356

As at 31 March 2023 F-E-=%5=F=+-H
Provision on an individual basis ~ #ANBIE % & 100% 1,031 (1,031 -
Provision on a collective basis BHEEEERS 0.48% 75,293 (366) 74,927

76,324 (1,397) 74,927
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 MERREE )
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 31 MERREE (%)
(d) Liquidity risk d) FHEELNE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REFE MR EIE R 2R
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that REFR  UWBRAEDLFEH
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its NEREBFUBEEDRRKBRIE
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer EER-
term.
As at 31 March 2024, the Group held cash and T-E-EOE=ZRA=+—-H ' £&
cash equivalents of approximately HK$57,377,000 FEUEZRAZSZENDH
(2023: approximately HK$123,296,000) that could 57,377,000 B L(ZFEZ=F 1 4
be readily realised to generate cash inflows for 123,296,000787T) » A BEAY AT =
managing liquidity risk. ERERANEERDEEKE
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the remaining TZE-_MFER=-F-=Z%Z=A
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the =t+—B  AEARAQARRER
Company’s financial liabilities, based on WIRRERERAERAMZ SR
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date our FHMzERAFZHRTENEE
Group can be required to pay. Balance date within RemTWHALWAKR 121 A
12 months equal their carrying balance circulating NSRS THRENERAE
both interest and principal as the impact of HOMKE 5 1% o
discounting is not significant.
Total
Less than contractual
Tyearor  Between1  Between2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  and2years and5years Over5years  cash flows amount
PF-£4, RENANH
REX  -EMER MELER RBENRE k3t | KEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TEn
As at 31 March 2024 F-E-mE=R=1-A
Trade and other payables I E AT 31,113 - - - 31,113 31,113
Borrowings (Note) ) 14,309 6,898 20,694 29,921 71,822 58,602
Lease liabilities RELE 20,983 15,662 4,488 - 41,133 38,824
Total Bit 66,405 22,560 25,182 29921 144068 128,539
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Less than
Tyearor  Between
ondemand  and 2 years

5 XU RS B 2 (%)
3.1 MERKEEE(£)

d) TEHFREKE (L)

Total
contractual
Between 2 undiscounted Carrying
and5vyears  Over5years  cash flows amount
RROREN

RERFN BENE g e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEn

18,990 34,870 74,995 63,969
2,640 2,640 41,738 37,603

SF-E5

BEX  -ZHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

As at 31 March 2023 F-E-=%#=f=1-AH
Trade and other payables  RIfSTk3tR EbRifi3: 38,118 -
Borrowings (Note) BR () 14,806 6,329
Lease liabilities BEASG 29,946 6,512
Total Bif 82,870 12,841

Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its statement of financial position, as
the borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$46,790,000 (2023: approximately HK$50,843,000)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024.

3.2 Capital management
The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (cont'd)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
cash is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.

Total bank borrowings (Note 23)
Lease liabilities (Note 17)

Less: time deposits at banks with

maturity over three months 7k (M 21)
(Note 21)
Net debt/(cash) I (ML) 8
Total equity BEE
Gearing ratio BRI =R

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a net cash position.
Gearing ratio is not applicable.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other
receivables, contract assets and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-
term maturities.

The Group’s properties held for own use classified under
property, plant and equipment are carried at fair value.
Details of the fair value measurement of these properties
held for own use are disclosed in Note 16.

BRATERR (FFE23)

MR (ME17)

Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) J& : ME&RALSZENY (H3E21)
o EANB L ERITED

Wt 55 XS B B8 (42)

3.2

3.3

RAEHE (&)
REARFERFAFLLRERZHTA
ML IR AT & 1Tl — ARBRUER o BbEb R4Z
TUS BRI E AR BHITE - W 2 HN
REEEMERNGRAERASEN
M E - BABIIRGE M SRR R
B}z [ ] i E RISt E -

2024 2023

i e 113 —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHERT TET
58,602 63,969
38,824 37,603
(57,377) (123,296)
(30,309) (23,365)
9,740 (45,089)
495,493 496,715
2.0% N/A

FZEZ=ZFZRA=+—H  XEH2
BAMEPRR - WEFABLERHATER -

Do EMT

HTAERASRA (D) (BFER
WK - R ERREMNBR - &
ARFURRERMEENY)  REE
Bl <& b 0 53 (/B2 4 LAY KRR % L ftb R 4
o BANG - STEERMARRER) T
BHNEE  HARESHKEERS

AERAZEAYL - | BRIEE ZH1E
BRMLEARESIK - ZEFEE A
Pl ARETEZFETHIE16KE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D) 3 WM

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont'd) 3.3
The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2024 by

level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into

three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2023:

Level 1
R
HK$'000
TiEn

As at 31 March 2023
Financial liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts
— not qualified for hedge accounting

F=E==%5=A=+-H
TR
SMLZHEY

— THERREAR 21T

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 March 2023.
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®(E3R) »
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Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-R FE=R Bit
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FBT FiEn FEx
223 - 223
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

BRI R H M

REARFESELE R EAEE U ITME G
k¥ BEERERAEZRRATNAKRSE
2B o

REANARELEERRER - IEHSITE
HEHE R RO SEXGERER - XHR~R
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Rz It RBRIRWT e

41 IREHEE
TREINREHEFRAFRS ST
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ZHKEESEMGMITERSE o RBIS R
GFHEEARELSIBPZMITENTE
ZEEHHUM R - MBS R
BER HERBEMAETTHELIE
NEFENZERZKEERBERE

42 NMBERRNKRERRENE=HE
RE
REAETRANRRIAY T REHRE
R B UK TR B2 RIUUAR B R R B LY B
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of properties held for own use

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of properties held for own use performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the properties held for own
use may be different and thus may have an impact to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

Sale of goods BREE
Contract revenue CEILE
Timing of revenue recognition: Wz B IART A
— At a point in time —E-IHER
— Over time — BEE

4

B RSIHE TR H 8 (s

4.5

Frigst

fief 18 AT B2 8 AR SR B7 IR B % R UKL 45 77 3
RABIUT IR WBEFREB R K&
RFABMS MBI EET FHIAZ
BEMEHRABOAFTEEERFLHE
ZHM - TERFEAEME - RKIRB
EARARRS ZHRBEE - N&EH
ERFRHERE 2 WG BERAETEE
BARRBRTBURF] - B 7 Y =55 5T Fr
BBAE - WK IATINE I P 55 &
)*-‘—o

AEAREEBRTEANAER - T
BEEFEHEZRAEHERHE - K
EXZRITENTEBERLRIEHR
HZEERN2BREABRSEREHN T HA
BFERZEH - WEXZIEZEELE
RRTE 2 B 2 FriS Bt KRB IEFT 5 B 4K
%o

2024 2023
—EME B =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fx T
405,658 381,020
54,190 73,744
459,848 454,764
405,658 381,020
54,190 73,744
459,848 454,764
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6 OTHER INCOME

Government subsidy
Others

7  OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Net foreign exchange loss

— Forward contracts

— Other exchange gain

Impairment loss on properties held
for own use

COVID-19-related rent concessions
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6 HA
2024 2023
—E-MEF —EC=HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TFHET
BT 3 g - 34
HAth 1,291 748
1,291 782
7 RAB(SR) K W
2024 2023
—EE R -=5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TFHET
LRSS 8

—=HEy (1,157) (3,269)
— HACH s 176 1,906

BHEE AL 2 BES R
(2,107) (1,304)
2019 BRFEZHE XA L TR - 3,670
(3,088) 1,003




SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

—  Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture, interior design services, project
and contract management

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, time deposits
with maturity over three months, derivatives financial assets,
cash and cash equivalents and property, plant and equipment
related to the office premises and warehouse of the Group
and other corporate assets which are managed on a central
basis and are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings and other
corporate liabilities which are managed on a central basis and
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W R&M*

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8 mIERB®
2024
g el 11 23
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BRES BEigE
TRER R EAL EZ Hit
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHER FET
Reportable segment revenue from TR 25 5% P 4 #P Uk %
external customers 349,943 109,905 459,848
Reportable segment cost of sales  TSCiR2 5 S ER A (211,238) (69,400) (280,638)
Reportable segment gross profit LR B BEF 138,705 40,505 179,210
Depreciation of property, Pk~ T RIREITIR
plant and equipment (5,833) (3,477) (9,310)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ RE= 7R (17,443) (15,237) (32,680)
Provision for inventory HRFEHREE
obsolescence (434) (299) (733)
Finance income IEJPN 1,903 21 1,924
Finance costs &% A 3,272) (2,267) (5,539)
Net impairment losses on TRREARTZ
financial and contract assets A T 15755 (1,161) (34) (1,195)
Reportable segment assets ALCIR 2 2 0% 7= 290,676 100,783 391,459
Additions to non-current segment  FERIER 5 A~
assets during the year ZRE 829 8,812 9,641
Reportable segment liabilities ALCIR 2 9 B S 4R 87,671 74,035 161,706
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8 oEHEE ()

2023
—E=F
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
ZRAE - BHEig%
EARERREM SELN it
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET
Reportable segment revenue from TR Z 3 5M 5 P 40 BBl 2%
external customers 314,574 140,190 454,764
Reportable segment cost of sales  TCiR > 5 W ER A (204,854) (69,304) (274,158)
Reportable segment gross profit LR D BEF 109,720 70,886 180,606
Depreciation of property, Pl ~ T ERIREFIAR
plant and equipment (6,140) (4,514) (10,654)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & B#UA =47 IH (17,904) (12,176) (30,080)
(Provision for)/reversal of provision IrE#H (k%) #h&kE
for inventory obsolescence (4,101) 836 (3,265)
Finance income IESLON 1,854 32 1,886
Finance costs &% A (1,900) (1,592) (3,492)
Net impairment losses on ERRENRTZ
financial and contract assets HET R (2,401) (30) (2,431)
Reportable segment assets L3R 2 20 2R = 321,838 71,923 393,761
Additions to non-current segment  FERIERI D A~
assets during the year ZARE 554 7,152 7,706
Reportable segment liabilities LR 2 2 EB S 110,322 73,122 183,444
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8

The table presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

2 EBEF ()

FEAZRESBEAEAGEVSRERZEE
WSS BEXS AT R

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit LRz 0 B EF
Group gross profit KHAER
Reportable segment assets LRz 0 B
Property, plant and equipment b~ T ERIEE
Deferred income tax assets BB FE P S BL R
Current income tax recoverable AR EIAER PS5

Time deposits with maturity over
three months

FEEBE =N ANERER

Cash and cash equivalents NERASENY
Derivative financial assets PTEERE
Other corporate assets Htgtolb 53 7=
Group assets E vk g
Reportable segment liabilities LRz 2 &R S5
Borrowings CEN

Current income tax liabilities RSB
Deferred income tax liabilities 1B SE S B A5R
Other corporate liabilities H b £ 45
Group liabilities KH A
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2024 2023
—E-lEF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
179,210 180,606
179,210 180,606
391,459 393,761
221,805 190,909

5,325 5,352

4,394 3,183

30,309 23,365
57,377 123,296
- 223

426 484
711,095 740,573
161,706 183,444
33,736 37,501
5,113 5,167
14,500 17,201
547 545
215,602 243,858




8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8

Geographical information

2 EBE R (&)

i X 2 56 5 R

Revenue from external

Non-current assets

(excluding financial assets
and deferred income tax

assets)

ERBEF (TRESHAT

R it GE PTG B R =)
2024 2023
—EB-mEF —ER=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHBRT

319,864 337,310
292 624

customers

TINE P U

2024 2023
—EME —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Hong Kong (domicile) R (EEELHR) 429,150 436,198
PRC i 30,698 18,566
Total Bt 459,848 454,764

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined
based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there is no single
customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2023:
same).

320,156 337,934

ERHXUEREINEMAEMLEME - F
MR 2 XA ENREZR T 2 KRR E

MiE e

BE-E-ME=A=+—HLEE  BLtE
—EPFLEAREARZBE10%(Z8]==

HE) e
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11)

Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories (Note 19)

Provision for inventory obsolescence,
included cost of sales

Other direct costs, included in cost
of sales

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset
(Note 17)

Expenses relating to short-term lease
(Note 17)

Legal and professional expenses

Building management fee

Electricity and water

Bank charges

Entertainment

Government rent and rates

Transportation

Storage charges

Printing and stationary

Travelling

Other expenses
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9 FHFZXMR

R TERZH (FHE11)
RN

— BRBRS

— FEBHRS

TR A (BfE19)
TR E (T AEERA)

Hitb BEEA (T AHERA)

Pl ~ TR RIRESIR (FHE16)

FERRAEHIB (FHE17)

FEHM ST (M2 17)

EERT LI X
RFEEERA
B R KE
RITHRA
BIEM %%

BT AR 10
RBHE

BHERR
ENRl K2 &
ZRE
HiT %

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

2024 2023
—E-E R =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
67,712 69,103
1,760 1,760
216 195
265,550 253,061
733 3,265
14,355 17,832
20,128 19,103
32,680 30,080
442 154
2,587 3,919
2,447 2,124
1,438 1,308
1,681 2,409
2,206 2,290
1,942 1,504
4,738 4,341
7,275 6,080
1,261 2,134
838 531
12,390 14,650
442,379 435,843




10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(Note 17)

Finance income
Bank interest income

Finance costs, net

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and allowances, including
directors’ emoluments

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations

Government grant (Note)

Note:

10

W55 %A
RITERFBIF X
HEARMEIT = (HE17)

L ON
RATFIE WA

WMEHA - FE

11

HFERZEN  BRESHE

RAERA — RERKITY

EABNEEEHITE

BTN (B )

The government grant recognised in employee benefit expenses of
HK$2,951,000 mainly represents the employment support scheme paid by
Hong Kong Government during the year ended 31 March 2023.

WA - B8

2024 2023
—E_E B =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TFEx
3,533 1,919
2,006 1,573
5,539 3,492
(1,924) (1,886)
3,615 1,606
ARIERAZH

2024 2023
o 11123 —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
66,905 68,652
2,046 2,381
(1,239) 1,021
- (2,951)

67,712 69,103

BE -

BF*ME 2,951,000 8 T TR ABAFZHIA TBERHE
BEATEZE-_ZE-=F=F=t—HALEEXFHR

Bk ity o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 EE2EARNERIEERSHH

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS Ax
(@) Directors’ remuneration @ EFZHH
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to ENHNNARAEEZMEZHAOT
the directors of the Company are as follows:
2024 —E-mE
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Discretionary henefit
fees Salaries honuses scheme Total
BHRER
ithlz
EEfig e HiEza BEHE Bit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx T T TR TiEn
Executive directors HWTESE
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) WA (EE) 100 3,044 - - 3,144
TSE Sun Wai, Albert B 100 4,619 - - 4,719
TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) #{#= (5 24 12) 100 4,253 - 12 4,365
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin BERA 100 3,810 - 18 3928
LAU Shiu Sun XIRH 100 1,975 - 18 2,093
Independent non-executive directors 34 ITEE
WONG Wah, Dominic g 188 - - - 188
WAN Sze Chung REER 188 - - - 188
LUK Wang Kwong P 188 - - - 188
1,064 17,701 - 48 18,813
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNnT'D)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont'd)

2023

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

LUK Wang Kwong

WITES

A (£5%)
B

G E (EER4H)
BEUR

XIBH

BIFHITES
0

=R

R

12

EECEARNGRAEBRESHM
Ax &)

(@ EEZHFH (%)

B -=F

Employer's

contribution

to retirement

Directors’ Discretionary benefit
fees Salaries honuses scheme Total

BIRER

itz
EEHE Fé BiERa BEHR Bit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Ti#n TiEn T
100 2,473 - - 2,573
100 4,048 - - 4,148
100 3,582 - 18 3,700
100 2,987 - 18 3,105
100 1,633 - 18 1,751
108 - - - 108
108 - - - 108
108 - - - 108
824 14723 - 54 15,601

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024

(2023: Nil).

BE-E_NE=A=+—HLEEE"
HEZESHEIRERFFRSE 2 (=
FE=F k)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

0]

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2024, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 30, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

1 60 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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(b)

(0

(d

(e)
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNnT'D)

(®

Five highest paid individuals

12

(@

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2023: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to
the five highest paid individuals during the year are as

follows:

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

FE K=
RS RN — REHRRITY

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

A B (BT)

2,500,001 /& 7t £ 3,000,000 /& 7T
3,000,001 % 7T E 3,500,000 /& T
3,500,001 & Tt £ 4,000,000 /& JT
4,000,001 /& Jt & 4,500,000 & 7T
4,500,001 7& 7t & 5,000,000 /& T

EECEARNGRAEBRESHM
Ax &)

LEREHMAL
FRNERERA-TEBRESFHALTEEDN
N(ZBEZ=ZF N ES > HE5He
EHNHTLEXIRZAMA - EAE X
RREZAFFREBRS WA L = 5l
mT

2024 2023

—EomE —=m-=x

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FBT

19,695 16,038

48 54

19,743 16,092
BENFLTER :

Number of individuals

A
2024 2023
= B 111 =3 —RB-=5F
- 2
1 1
2 1
1 1
1 _
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FiEHAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BRRNEBT UARFE MG I RIRBUS R R
(2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (ZFBZ=F :16.5%) ITIRIKE - TR
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group FE  ARATEWREQBDERARERN25%
is 25% (2023: 25%) for the year. (ZBZ=%F :125%) °
2024 2023
—E-E BT =5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHT
Current tax BB
Hong Kong profits tax BBREH 3,824 3,116
PRC corporate income tax REI TSR 12 153
Total current tax BV AR I3 2 3,836 3,269
Deferred taxation (Note 25) 1% FERL I (B E 25) (1,517) (673)
Income tax expense FREHT X 2,319 2,596
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the RERB RBEBIENERN 2 RIS BEKAR
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax SHESENEX 2 AR EMITE ZEiL
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows: BRFlzEZRMT
Group
FEH
2024 2023
—EME —E=
HK$’000 HK$"000
TET FHET
Profit before income tax BrFr B8 B EF 10,862 16,669
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates AR % it R RE AR
applicable to profits in the AIFHRIT B
respective region 1,300 909
Effect of tax reduction in current year AN R TR D K220 (33) (70)
Income not subject to tax BRFUA (840) (984)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes REHBIFF % 1,075 335
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  z) B ERBIAB RS IR
tax losses (494) (14)
Unrecognised tax losses REIABLILT IR 304 2,420
Under provision in prior years BEFERZERR 1,007 -
Income tax expense MEHTX 2,319 2,596
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14 DIVIDENDS

(@ Dividends declared and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of 2023 of
HK$0.5 cents (2023: in respect of
2022 of HK$1 cent) per share

(b) Dividends for the year

Proposed final dividend of Nil
(2023: HK$0.5 cents) per share

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

14 BRE

@ TAEESRERREZRE

CE=F o RBERESR
058 (=ZF =%
—E_FRERE

ER1B4L)

BURARH IR S SRR 8L
(ZEZ=%F:0.581) -

elements in ordinary shares issued during the years.

Basic earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2024 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there
were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued

(2023: same).

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
3,594 6,006
b FEBRE

2024 2023
—E_mE B =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T
3,594

15 BREF

@ BREFGF

BREFSNIDREALBDREENS
EFIBR AW R FERNRITENZEBR
AR E (RFERERITEBRLY

AREHIBE) -

2024
—EC-ME
HK cents
AL

RATRRBEENASREREF

2023
—EI=HF
HK cents
B

2.22

(b) EBREFRF

BTHEEATEEMREEER  ME
ECE_NE=ZRA=+—HLEEZS
BHERANEEREXZNER (=

—=F MR e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (conT'D)

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earning (©
per share

BREFEF
AT IHESREENE
RRBREE N SEF

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the owners
of the Company used in calculating
basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share BREEEF
Profit attributable to the owners AT IHESRMEEER
of the Company used in calculating RATFRAE N SER
diluted earnings per share
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the (d)

denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary eI+ EEREZA R ##E5%F 8
shares and potential ordinary Mo FHNEEREEEER
shares used as the denominator in OALE 29 # (FHE)
calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share (Note)

Note:

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2023 have been restated to take into account the effects of the bonus
element in ordinary shares issued as a result of the rights issue of the
Company completed in January 2023.
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15 BRER (&)

AT &8 RIS T R 5 3 K

2024 2023

—E_ME —E==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
8,543 14,073
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FiEx
8,543 14,073

FBED BRIt i35k

2024 2023
—EC-NE B =F
Number of Number of
shares shares
B3 ¥k B BB
718,838,942 632,838,238

ME -

BE-_S_=F=A=+-HLFENSRER
REEREIEEI U RAARFE_=F—
B AR T B & 1TE B AR B LR T iE R A 5

I o



Net book value

At 31 March 2022
Additions
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2023
Additions
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

At 31 March 2024
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NKE${E

—ER--F=A=+—H

NE

#18 (B 9)
ERr]
CRER

F-E_=F=H=+—H

NE

1718 (£ 9)
Eff
CRER

FT=F-mE=A=+—H

F=E2-==ZA=+—H

fhiE
A
it

TKE 4 {E

F-EB-MFE=/A=+—H

fh{E
B AR
FitirA

NKE 4 {E

16 Yl - ERIEE

Properties
held for Furniture,

own use Leasehold fixtures and Motor

(Note) improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BEERL - EE

(BhE)  AEMLES RigE HE Bit
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER T TET T
253,700 14,040 1,368 54 269,162
48,147 8,416 172 - 56,735
(10,321) (8,289) (439) (54) (19,103)
(4,726) - - - (4,726)
- 21 (15) - (36)
286,800 14,146 1,086 - 302,032
- 10,426 169 - 10,595
(12,117) (7,565) (446) - (20,128)
(9,683) - - - (9,683)
- - @ - 4)
265,000 17,007 805 - 282,812
286,800 - - - 286,800
- 92,512 20,854 1,091 114,457
- (78,366) (19,768) (1,091) (99,225)
286,800 14,146 1,086 - 302,032
265,000 - - - 265,000
- 102,951 20,980 1,091 125,022
- (85,944) (20,175) (1,091) (107,210)
265,000 17,007 805 - 282,812
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

Note:

If properties held for own use were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

Cost A
Accumulated depreciation ESaglls
Net book amount K IE {8

Bank borrowings are secured by the properties held for own use in Hong
Kong with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$160,500,000 (2023:
approximately HK$200,200,000) (Note 23).

The following table analyses the properties held for own use
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Description R

As at 31 March 2024 F-Z-WE=RA=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements Z%#AR{EITE
— Properties held for own use — BEE AL

As at 31 March 2023 —Z-=F=HA=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements ZEMAREITE
— Properties held for own use — FEE AL

Note:

For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are
not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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16 Yl - [ ERIRE

BbE

B BYL TR A ERAEERY]  BXREFNT ¢

2024 2023
—E-mE —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
191,412 191,412
(19,956) (15,366)
171,456 176,046

HITHER UL KEEL 160,500,000 8T (ZFE==4F:
£9200,200,000 8 70 ) 2 & B E B AP L EIR T (HE
23) ¢

TRUGEEDITRARETIKZFERBY
ﬂ_li o

Fair value measurements using
RATHEMZAREITE

Quoted

prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
MRR~TF BEAHM BEART
JEBRTS AME  WEEARE
Z IR WALE (B=R)
(F—R) (B=R) (B$3E)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T TEx T
- - 265,000
- - 286,800

B

BEZRMT2ARETEMNE  RFERAHZHARK
FEH A AR MB35 400 (B R AT ML= g A 3R ) S BeAt, o



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FAER

Addition wE

Depreciation #r18

Impairment loss on properties FEBAYLYRESR
held for own use

Loss on revaluation recognised THM2EREEIAZ
in other comprehensive income EHTM

Closing balance FRER

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s properties held for own use was valued at 31
March 2024 by an independent and qualified valuer, Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the properties held for own use
valued (2023: same).

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.

Wl - B RIZE ()

AEAZHEANTHERASBLAAERR 2B
BeBEHABREILE  BINEXARER
RrBEARFEH -FR E-—F - F-ERE
ZRZBHTER

MAERTAUERARE (F=R) 22 RE
&

Properties held for own use

g AL
2024 2023
—T-MEF —ERC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FiHx
286,800 253,700
- 48,147
(12,117) (10,321)
(2,107) (1,304)
(7,576) (3,422)
265,000 286,800

RER 2z hERRE

RERAZFEBRYL B S FEBAETE
FENTMTERLTDT-F-_NF=A
=+ —HETMHE  EEMSEEXIATE
W EAE - BRERIEE THES AL AT
XE D BHTEENER(ZEZ=F : 8E) -

REAMSHEIE -XBWMFHRE B OFFEIR
SAEE PR EEAT A {E 2 FIBA - ZE A EEEE

LR - HEAREF SHEEM NS AER
BRER -
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D) 16

Valuation processes of the Group (cont’d)

Level 3 fair values of properties held for own use have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market

unit rate.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
FAME G A LR

Market unit rate
miHENE

Range of unobservable inputs
FANERARECE

Office: HK$15,900 to HK$16,100 (2023:
HK$17,500 to HK$17,600) per square feet
of saleable area

EF# SSAEMRSFEAFR15,900#TE 16,100
BIT(ZEZ=%F :17,500/8T&E 17,6008 7T)

Shop: HK$64,400 (2023: HK$73,600) per
square feet of saleable area

JEH  KAERESFHER64,4008T(ZFZ=
% :73,60087T)

Warehouse: HK$3,300 (2023: HK$3,400)
per square feet of saleable area

6 XAERSFHR3 0BT (ZF==
£ 3,400 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the

year (2023: same).
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RER 2 HERRE (&)
FEERNLzE=ZRARBENEREELR
EBE - EELELBE-RAAEXTH LTS
Pz REEBREERZEHY LN E - PR
i XA L B 2 ENERR Z B - 47l
ERRERETERR2ERFERFE - G
EE2HRERBABENTZENE -

BXFARAEATANRBALRE (B=R) 22
RETEZHEH

Relationship of unobservable
inputs of fair value
DAAEMPRAANERABEZRR

The higher the market unit rate, the

higher the fair value
TIHENEMS - AREES

FRMEFERLZD (ZFZ=F : @) -



17 LEASES 17 M|

This note provides information for leases where the Group is AELERBARAENABAZBETRS
a lessee.
(@ Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (@ THREMSWRRABINZ S
financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows SEMSWRRINTUTESEEFTRZ
the following balances relating to the leases: ZiR
2024 2023
—EB-mEF —B-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
Right-of-use assets AR
Properties 1l 37,344 35,902
Lease liabilities HERHR
Current itz 19,406 29,143
Non-current ER3 19,418 8,460
38,824 37,603
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended BE-Z_NE=A=+—-HLFE"
31 March 2024 amounted to approximately NEERRUR4935,339,000 8T (=%
HK$35,339,000 (2023: approximately HK$21,490,000). — =% 1 921,490,000 7T) °
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (b) TFTHRELERBRABINZSH
comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income SELHWBERINFUTSHEREXZ
shows the following amounts relating to the leases: o
2024 2023
ot B 111 =3 R =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
Depreciation charge of right-of-use EABUR = 2 IRFT X (£ 9)
assets (Note 9) 32,680 30,080
Expenses relating to short-term BREPER I (KHE9)
leases (Note 9) 442 154
Interest expense (Note 10) FEFFXZ (K E10) 2,006 1,573
The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31 BE-—_E-_NME=A=+—HILEE
March 2024 amounted to approximately MES BIME7REYN35,512,00058 T
HK$35,512,000 (2023: approximately HK$28,855,000). (ZZE==% : 428,855,000 T) °
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17 LEASES (cONT'D)

(c)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties including retail
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease terms
are between one to six years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor.

18

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 March 2024 and

2023:

Name of subsidiary

WELARER

Accord Sky Limited
Accord Sky Limited
Asia Bon Company Limited

EAWN) AFEREARAA

Asia Richly Limited
THEZERAT

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
RETEEMERLT
Cypress Design Limited
RARITERAT

D.LY. Limited

D.LY. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

BATRAMHARAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

R/ RibR

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
2
Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong

R
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Particulars of issued
share capital

BRTRARE

1,000,000 ordinary shares

1,000,000 REER

100 ordinary shares
100 REBR

1 ordinary share

1REER

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 E B

1 ordinary share

1 REBR

2 ordinary shares

2REBER

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REBR

Legal structure

EELH

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities

BRRELT

Company with limited liabilities

BRRAENA

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities
BRAELH

Company with limited liabilities

ARRALT

Company with limited liabilities

ARREAF

1

1

7

(==}

T ()

(© FEAZBAFEIREAKGR
AEREAZIMYP L - ShEEEEE
o HeREFEYL - HENF—=
NE o

MHMENHEEEDR  ALSENTE
ZERREM o AP e T
Rig ETHEARBZHERR T2
AR BRI

B /8 2 B &

UTAF=-BE-_NER-FE_=F=A=+—
AzMELARRE :

Equity interest held
R RARE
2024
b Sl 13

Principal activities and
place of operation

TRLERELBR

2023
—ECZE

Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in
Hong Kong

EREEETEASERERRRE
REM

100% 100%

100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

TEEEMLER
100%

100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

TEEENLER
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders” hardware in Hong Kong
TEBENRHERRLE
100% 100%  Consulting services for interior design
and fitting out works
ERRITREB IR ZEARS
100% 100%  Handling of human resources
planning and development
activities of the Group
REASAANRFMIR X REE
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders” hardware and bathroom

collections in Hong Kong

TEEEORHERRASRIDARE



18

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cONT'D)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

H20 (Pro) Limited
KZBERAT
Kitchen (Pro) Limited

BeRERAT

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

X2 (BB)BRAR

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

ZE (LB R2BERAR

Oriental Forward Limited

RAKEBRLT

Oriental Longway Limited
FAKERRAT

Right Century Limited

BHERAE

Leader New Limited

HEARLT

Shanghai Tech Pro International
Trading Company Limited*

o

LESREGRZBRLT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

/RIS
Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

R

PRC

HE

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

A

PRC

=

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRABAFE

2 ordinary shares

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 REER

10,000 orclinary shares

10,000 REER

US$$250,000

250,000 %7

1 ordinary share

TREER

1 ordinary share

1REER

1,000 ordinary shares

1,000 R EBER

1 ordinary share

1REBR

US§300,000

300,000 % T

18 MiE 2 ANE (&)

Legal structure
EEGH

Company with limited liabilities

ARRENT

all

Company with limited liabilities

ARREALT

all

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

2HREL

Company with limited liabilities

ARRELT

Company with limited liabilities

BRRELT

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities

BRRELT

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

EHRED

Equity interest held

iR AR
2024 2023
—E-mE ZF-=E
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

TELSRELER

Importing and sale of bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

TEEAORHED AR

Importing, sale and installation of
kitchen collections in Hong Kong

TEERD HERZREERZ

Supply of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections
for property development

in Hong Kong
TERLNRARERIARE T
XRIE

Supplying architectural builders'
hardware and bathroom collections
for property development in Shanghai

TLBHNEREERIARET
MR A

Property holding in Hong Kong
TERENLER

Property holding in Hong Kong
TEEENLSE

Retail sales of bathroom accessories
and decoration materials through

retail shops in Hong Kong
BEUREETERTEHEDARS
REHHH

Property holding in Hong Kong
TREFNLER

Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware and bathroom
collections in the PRC

THEAORHERRDERDARE
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18

Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiary establishment
WEAREH i3 AR )
Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC
Decoration Company Limited*
LEERENKNERAR  HE

Sunny Building and Decoration  Hong Kong
Materials Company Limited

FHEGHHEETRERAR &8

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cONT'D)

Particulars of issued
share capital
BERITRAEE
RMBS5,000,000
AR5,000,0007C

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REZ B

18 MiE 2 ANE (&)

Legal structure

EELH

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

2HRED

Company with limited liabilities

BRRELT

Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities
BRENRAERLT R 1,000 REBR ARREAT

ViA Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities
ViA Asia Pacific Limited & 1REBR BRRELH

VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise
E6 (LR RABHEARAR ©E 250,000 % 70 2HRED

Joy Fly Limited# Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities
A VRRAR: B 10REER AREALT

* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent

management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

# The financial information of the subsidiary that has non-controlling
interests are not material to the Group.
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Equity interest held

iR
2024 2023
—ECME C—FC-=E
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% N/A
FiER

Principal activities and
place of operation
FELSRELBR

Undertaking interior decoration and
project management for property

development in the PRC
THERUZARBRABEERST
NG

Retail sales of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom collections
through retail shops in Hong Kong

BHSEETEETEHERTS
RIAEE

Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware

RORHERRTE

Investment holding

RAZR

Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture
and kitchen collections in Shanghai

TLEEORHEEDR AR
Gl

Importing and sale of kitchen collection

#ORBERRRE

BT ERETHEQATALRRRIER X
ERNEVHEEERFEPXERR OPIE -

PAEFRFNENHE QDM SRR ARERAH

FEA o



19

INVENTORIES

Finished goods i A

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK$265,550,000
(2023: approximately HK$253,061,000).

As at 31 March 2024, finished goods with cost of
approximately HK$35,020,000 (2023: approximately
HK$34,490,000) were considered as obsolete.

The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is
as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FPE %
Provision for inventory obsolescence HREFEHREE
Exchange difference LCRESR
Balance at end of the year FRER

19

2024 2023

i a1t S —ER=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
169,712 144,909

BWIARFZHITATHEREK] 2 FEHEAETLH
265,550,000 BT (ZFEZ=F : £9253,061,000
BIT) ©

FZE-WE=ZA=+—H SIHNHRB2ZRK
A £ 535,020,000 T(ZFE Z=ZF: 4
34,490,000 7T) ©

EREREZZHNT
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=#
HK$’000 HK$’000
FT FBT
34,490 31,643
733 3,265
(203) (418)
35,020 34,490
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20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

CONTRACT ASSETS

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract
assets as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Retention receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
retention receivables

Contract assets
Less: provision for impairment of
contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion
Retention receivables
Deposits

Current portion

IVE e
B R ORE R

BIW 4R B8 5K
W RWR B ROBERZ

BYRE
B RARFRERE

HM MW - BERMER

ZANE IR Py
BIW AR B R
7w

BN RR

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the

end of the respective reporting dates.
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B W K FX - R UL R B X

RRENRE

+ H fth 51 UL

TR -MER-F-=F=A=1+—-H2ZN
WK~ RIRE K - HtBW R R &% ™

HEWT

2024 2023
bt 1112 —EB-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
96,532 71,605
(1,886) (1,118)
94,646 70,487
1,147 1,435
(274) (264)
95,519 71,658
3,870 3,284
(33) (15)
99,356 74,927
24,466 27,384
123,822 102,311
(32) (367)
(4,808) (4,377)
118,982 97,567

FrEARENEE 0 2 R T & MEHERE

TTHRFAEHE -



20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20 RIUWIKFRK - R UWR BB = - H fth R Uk

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONT'D) REREHHE™ (%)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date RIWIKFR T 1R & B 2 MKk (LA R R ITE) 547
by invoice date is as follows: W
2024 2023
—T-F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET
0-90 days 0Z90K 62,458 31,311
91-365 days 91 £365K 14,730 25,270
Over 365 days #Id 365 K 19,344 15,024
96,532 71,605
The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 RERAZHEEHBAMBH N30E0XK - M
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended BAEFNEARTRERERZ 120K -

credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to REFANAEBMSIREENE S AT
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected g?ﬁﬁ}ﬁn WS XA RWOKRK ~ RIWR &
loss allowance for all trade, retention receivables and contract RUREGNR=FEALBMBSTREE - BX
assets. Information about the impairment of these receivables 1219;}(“145( Iﬁﬂ1ﬁ7§i$‘ilf*ﬁﬂhﬂ’]’ﬁ‘¥3}$ﬁ
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is set out in Note THEE3
3.1(c).
The movement in the provision of expected credit loss on RIWIKFR ~ IR BRRENR™ 2 HER
trade, retention receivables and contract assets is as follows: SIRBEETHOT ¢
2024 2023
—ECE —EC-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FET
Balance at beginning of the year ERES 1,397 1,153
Loss allowance for the year FHNSHKE 1,195 2,431
Written-off i (488) (2,169)
Exchange difference LCHRESR 89 (18)
Balance at end of the year FRER 2,193 1,397
As at 31 March 2024, the carrying values of trade and other FoZ—mWE=ZA=+—0  NWKSREM
receivables approximate their fair values (2023: same). MR ZKEESHARERE (ZEZ=4F:
HE) o
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20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Contract assets related to contract work

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount

billed to the customer.

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME

DEPOSITS AT BANKS

Cash at bank and on hand

Time deposits at banks with maturity

over three months

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$3,574,000 (2023: approximately
HK$1,497,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

The deposits at banks carry interest at mark rates which range
from 3.22% to 4.53% (2023: 0.20% to 4.95%) per annum.
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BRANTRISNES

RITFERRFLAE
=AU ERERITEMER

MUK - WRBR - HaRu
RREHR™ (&)

BHRFIEBUT ¢
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
3,870 3,284

BHRFERCHUNKEEEIATF A HKE
WEHNENTEFENRAKEEM

NERASENYWURRITERF

=h
TA

2024 2023
—E-mE —F=-=
HK$’000 HK$"000
FET THEx
57,377 123,296
30,309 23,365
87,686 146,661

F-E-_WF=A=+—H0 > T*EHAZHNERK
RITEBRN35740008B T(ZEZ=ZF: 4
1,497,000 7T) EFAFE Z4R1T » SLRZ I
SLEBIE S o

HITERIRENR3I2%E453%(ZFE==
F 10.20%F4.95%) 1T 8 °



22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

Trade payables RIS R

Accrued charges and other payables Riit %% R H A RATRR
Contract liabilities BH N

Employee benefit obligations R RBRRE

Less: non-current portion
Employee benefit obligations

w AEBENERER
R R BRIZE
Current portion BN #R

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days 0E90K
91-365 days 91 E365K
Over 365 days B 365K

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2023: same).

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

AEARFEEHNE

22 NAKHRREMNNRRELHRE

2024 2023
—EE B =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fx TR
25,724 29,854
5,253 13,400
62,804 70,643
4,782 6,021
98,563 119,918
(4,782) (6,021)
93,781 113,897

B TR E B 2R (MARBITE) 247

mT

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFExT

19,156 22,022

3,156 4,074

3,412 3,758

25,724 29,854

FT-E_WF=A=+—8 NfIkRXKRHEA
NMAERZKHESEARERE (ZE=F:

HE) o
EAMGIERBNT -
2024
—EomE
HK$’000
FHET
62,804

2023
—Ro=F
HK$’000
FET

70,643
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22 RIffMRRHEMRNSRREA AR

LIABILITIES (coNT'D) (%)
Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an EANFRBEERERAEFEHBENBERME N
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for goals FEFRRM (REBLNEH) -

that have not yet been transferred to the customers.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue TRERSERSANFERNAREREE
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to BIARE S
carried-forward contract liabilities:

2024 2023
—E-ME B =5
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHBT
Revenue recognised that was included T AEHEYRHEL BT HIARE
in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year 54,326 71,024
23 BORROWINGS 23 &
2024 2023
—E-NE R =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FET
Current BN
— Bank borrowings — mortgage loans ~ — 4R{TfE 5 — RIBHEK 51,320 55,492
— Bank borrowings — trust receipt loans — R{T7{&5% — SHEWIR K 7,282 8,477
58,602 63,969
Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or EUR ERUERRzEEEMERZNBTHIKRET (=
(2023: same). All mortgage loans are denominated in HK$ To=F B  MBERBARZEERT
(2023: same). RNET(ZEZ=F: HR) °
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23 BORROWINGS (cONT'D)

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable based on contractual repayment terms as follows:

Within one year —f§K

In the second year BFMN

In the third to fifth year BE=ZFZERFN
Over fifth year BYERF

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$51,320,000 (2023:
approximately HK$55,492,000) are secured by properties
held for own use of the Group of approximately
HK$160,500,000 (2023: approximately HK$200,200,000)
(Note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating
rates, equals their carrying amounts.

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

FHRE :
— —ERE

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year

The effective interest rate is 5.8% per annum (2023: 3.6% per
annum) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the banking facilities were secured by
the following:

(i)  Corporate guarantee provided by the Company; and
(ii)  Certains properties held for own used in Hong Kong
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its

borrowing facilities for the year ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

B (&)

FoE_NER-_E-_=F=A=+—H &
EATRBEIERPREEZERAT ¢

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFEx
11,812 13,126
4,703 4,791
15,803 15,243
26,284 30,809
58,602 63,969

|ITERY51,3200008 T(ZBEZ=F: 4
55,492,000 T ) 2 ML RN &E B W H Y
160,500,000 xt( = F = = HF: 4
200,200,000 70 ) Z 3F4E B A YL (EHC 8 (B
E16) ©

MAEFFHNEZERZ AN EEREKEE -

REABUTRDAZREEH
2024 2023
—EopmE —B-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TFE&x
163,312 193,736

BE-BE-NME=ZA=+—-—BLHFEZXKE
FZER5.8%(ZB-=F : §F3.6%) °

T-E-OF=ZA=1t—H  RITMEUTH
B IUEH R -

(i) AXTARHOLFER K

(i) TEBETHEHESRYL

BE_ZE_NER-_F-_=F=A=+—HIt
FE  AEACETHEESM 2 MHRE
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24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24 FTHEERMA
2024 2023
—E_ME ' =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Not qualified for hedge accounting THEXNHALITRE
Foreign exchange forward contract, INOEHIRL » WA
at market value (Note) (Ff3E) - 223
Note: HE -
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward FoE-=F=ZA=+-RERTEZMNLZHENZ
contracts as at 31 March 2023 are as follows: EZNRESTNT ¢
2024 2023
—EomE —R-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Figx
Sell HKD for EUR EHBTREKRE = 21,415
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION 25 JHIERHLI

2024 2023
—E-NE B =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT TEx
Deferred income tax assets B I TSR R 5,325 5,352
Deferred income tax liabilities B IE ISR SR (14,500) (17,201)
(9,175) (11,849)
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and AEEERAEMBREBS FENX NIRE LR -
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration REEZBRLEREH AT RAGEHFELs W
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTEH R
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
RIS H AERGTIE %% Bit
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

“RCME CTCSF O ZRCME CF-CF O CRCRE CFC=F O CFCME CFC=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER Tix TER TR TER Tix TER TR

At 1 April THA-A 1,369 2,503 12,553 10,606 350 651 14,272 13,760
Credited/(charged) to profit 1T A/ ($18)#R&
or loss 220 (1,134) 997 1,947 47 (254) 1,264 559
Exchange difference LRER - - - - 93) (47) 93) (47)
At 31 March F=A=1+-H 1,589 1,369 13,550 12,553 304 350 15,443 14,272
Deferred income tax liabilities B JE RS B AR
Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total
Ml E £ MEB IR Bit
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

—EC-NE ZS-=fF CZE-NFE C—E-=F ZBE-NE =—F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FEx THER TEx FTHERr THxT

At 1 April THA-A 25,501 26,281 620 506 26,121 26,787
Credited to other comprehensive it \E £ E H5

income (1,250) (552) - - (1,250) (552)
(Credited)/charged to profit (itA)/MERE

or loss (345) (228) 92 114 (253) (114)
At 31 March F=A=1-A 23,906 25,501 712 620 24,618 26,121
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION (cONT'D) 25 JEFEHLI (%)
As at 31 March 2024, the Group has not recognised deferred T-2E-WME=A=1+—A0 " ARANRAEIA
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of BXREBITHRI T MLI24,348,0008 T(=F
approximately HK$24,348,000 (2023: approximately ZZ=H:4922,127,0008 ) ZBERBH A
HK$22,127,000) as it is not probable that future taxable o B TEEXBSEENRRMERSE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be RS - RRA KA BEIS RIIRE R A LUK 45
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These BRIMSIR - ZERMNSH/EHANOT :

tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:

2024 2023
—ECMF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
In the first to fifth year inclusive E-—FEZERFAN(BREEEFRF) 24,348 22,127
Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$351,000 FZ2E-_ME=A=+—0  HEHHEL T
as at 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately HK$415,000) FSC BRI R = FRNH & 5 4th 56 0008 IA 38 1E FT
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other EBRAEYI000BT(ZE=-=F 4
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of 415,00087x) c T=FE-_MFE=A=+—H "
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately FLEFEHYR7,022,000BT(ZE==
HK$7,022,000 at 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately F 1 498,304,000 T) RAEAHTITEF A
HK$8,304,000), and the Group does not intend to remit these MERCAEATEEME AT ZRCEF o
unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 RRA
2024 2023
—E-ME “BCCF
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
RE %A TERT RH#HE TEn
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREEIBIZEER
At 1 April and 31 March FmA—-BR=RA=+—8 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHA :
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREEIBIZEER
At 1 April TH™A—H 718,838,942 71,884 600,600,000 60,060
Issuance of ordinary shares ETHBRRITEER (ME)
upon rights issue (Note) - - 118,238,942 11,824
At 31 March F=A=+—8 718,838,942 71,884 718,838,942 71,884
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D) 26 RRAN (%)

Note: M5

On 21 October 2022, the Company proposed to implement a right issue to FoE-——E+A-+—RB AQFBRNNETHNER
its shareholders a right issue its shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of B4 0.192 B TIRERENBINERERE — BREGHE
150,150,000 shares at an issue price of HK$0.192 per share on the basis of R ZRHEATALAR  BUAE 150,150,000 BRI © &
one share for every four existing shares held. A total of 118,238,942 rights $118,238,942 BR A AR AR D SRIE BN o 223 B U B (2L AR
shares were fully subscribed. Proceeds of approximately HK$22,702,000 P8540 22,702,00058 7T » 35385 BA4 1,300,000
were received and the related transaction costs of approximately BT EFERFNG ZERAELSENSYNE
HK$1,300,000 were netted off with the proceeds. These shares rank pari ETNERPEZERLS A - BERAEENIS BT
passu in all respect with the then existing shares in issue. The excess over the AR BN o

par value of the shares were credited to the share premium account.

27 RESERVES 27

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out REFATRETHEBRTEANETHE o
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve EERE

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations, R EAXANRAE - ANTEFHRELNT
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to FASEZEEREME 2T NBRBTES
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the Mo ERAEFESL - RIEREGXNH 22
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as FIR4| » ZEEESUEINTEMBEATTE
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve TSR AER M R RARY o

may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve SHEE

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference REFAZSHEENETER > EEASKRETF=
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share EEEE=A-_+-HEFASHE(S4E K
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant MEFRK R AT e T ROENTK T Z5 0 I
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22 EFBERERRIANTCKITRY ZEE -

March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve BAEAEE

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by ARAREIETF-_SSSE=-A-+-HEHA=E
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company AR RAENAARETFHEATZHAR
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000. o
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 HeEREHER
(@ Cash flows from operating activities (@ ZAREEFNTEZIUESRE
2024 2023
—E-IEF —B-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHBT
Profit before income tax R B R BEF 10,862 16,669
Adjustments for: ST HBIFE
Finance costs Wt 45-2% A 5,539 3,492
Finance income [T N (1,924) (1,886)
Impairment loss on properties g B RE SR
held for own use 2,107 1,304
Provision for inventory obsolescence  dmifz#it & 733 3,265
Net impairment losses on ERRENET ZRETHR
financial and contract assets 251 1,195 2,431
Loss on forward contracts AL SR 1,157 3,269
Loss on lease modification HEBHSHR - (94)
Depreciation of property, Pk~ T RIREITIR
plant and equipment 20,128 19,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERARCEF=HTIR 32,680 30,080
Remeasurements of employee EABANREEHITE
benefit obligations (1,239) -
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2019 @RS HEHEXFA S TR - (3,670)
Operating profit before working BEERSEHE 2 EEEF
capital changes 71,238 73,963
Inventories 7% (25,843) (32,885)
Trade, retention and other receivables RUlkzEr « RUIRE K%
H Ath B UL FX (22,821) 51,973
Contract assets SR (704) 906
Trade and other payables and provision B3l & A R R R ik & (11,741) 9,179
Contract liabilities BN R (7,460) (4,734)
Cash generated from operations REFE NS 2,669 98,402
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conNT'D)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

28

activities

At 1 April 2022 F-FE-—FmWA—A

Cash flows NE&RE

Non-cash movement ML

At 31 March 2023 F-E-—=F=A=+—H

Cash flows Hehea

Non-cash movement 1SR

At 31 March 2024 F-E-_mWE=/A=+—H
29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29

As at 31 March 2024, performances bonds of approximately
HK$7,870,000 (2023: approximately HK$23,333,000) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

HNERhERTE (w

(b) BURIESN LR RN IK

Liabilities from financing activities

B BE D) 2
Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total
LB HE A Bit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR
42,083 49,996 92,079
19,967 (28,701) (8,734)
1,919 16,308 18,227
63,969 37,603 101,572
(8,900) (35,070) (43,970)
3,533 36,291 39,824

58,602 38,824 97,426

SRR

FZE-WNFE=ZA=+—8  AEHACRBREF
KHBAYORIEL47,870,0008 T (ZFE==
5 £923,333,0008 ) ERELER o
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 REAEXRS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BREEMSREARBEZR SRR FTA
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during FERN ARABRSRKEATHITUTRS :

the year, the Group had the following transactions with a
related party:

Balances with a related party KIEANL 2GS
2024 2023
—E_ME —E==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THEx
Other receivables from Sk B BT 2 BIH E At R
— Negotiator Consultants Limited — Negotiator Consultants Limited
(“NCL") (Note) (TNCL) (Bi3E) 306 357
As at 31 March 2024, the balances with a related party is FoE-_ME=A=+—B  RKEATZEH
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The AEHRA - RERTNERER - KHESH
carrying amounts approximate their fair values (2023: same). ARERE(ZF==F : @) -
Note: HEE
NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, NCLAARNBESHHELE - WHERE  BHEL
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of the ERBENAREERERZNEZ2AT - HANRERSE
Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid in the W TRARAERASNCLEBE 2 KM AT °
normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the Group and
NCL.
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

31 RAFAMSFRARRMEELD

2024 2023
—E-mE BT =F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE FET THET
Assets B’
Non-current asset R BE =
Interest in a subsidiary B 2 B R 90,918 90,918
Current assets RENRFE
Amounts due from subsidiaries RIUL Y B 2 B3R I 42,460 45,322
Other receivables H A R UK 30 30
Current income tax recoverable AU ] A< HA T 18 84 116 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERASZNY 1,147 1,235
_________ 43753 46587
Total assets R 134,671 137,505
Equity R
Equity attributable to equity ROEAEENSNE
holders of the Company
Share capital %N 71,884 71,884
Reserves ES (a) 60,811 63,253
Total equity TR 132,695 135,137
Liabilities AR
Current liabilities R AR
Other payables R IVANE 1,976 2,345
Current income tax liabilities RER S B S R - 23
___________ 1976 2368
Total equity and liabilities B R At 134,671 137,505

RARMFRARELES2T S IWER

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2024 and
were signed on its behalf.

AZtHR#E  HEATIEEAREE -

TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony

G HT A =
Director Director
EZE EZE

BBFERERAT202324558% 187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %& W& k& E

31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 RATMSRRERREZZD (&)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)
Note: HMEE
(@  Reserve movement of the Company (@  EDEEEED
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
R 43 85 4 REBEF Bit
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2022 F-E-_—_FMA—H 1,201 57,639 58,840
Profit for the year FEHF - 836 836
Dividends (Note 14(a)) B2 (K% 14@) - (6,006) (6,006)
Right issue 1R 9,583 - 9,583
At 31 March 2023 F-E-_=%=H=+—H 10,784 52,469 63,253
At 1 April 2023 F-E-_=FMA—H 10,784 52,469 63,253
Profit for the year FEEEF - 1,152 1,152
Dividends (Note 14(a)) BRE (F5E 14(a) - (3,594) (3,594)
At 31 March 2024 F-E-_WmE=A=+—H 10,784 50,027 60,811
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HBEEARSITEHRBE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

32.1 Principles of consolidation 321 HERN
Subsidiaries HE AT
Subsidiaries are all entity (including structured entities) MR AR N AREANE AR
over which the Group has control. The Group controls BEXRE(BREMEE) - ERERES
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, SEXRE 2L FMAERBENERT AL
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and B3R R BEHEIXNKEEANSM
has the ability to affect those returns through its power SN0 123 B4R - 25 5 B B AT 4% AR SR A o
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from MEARBEFNEBEREAZAS
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. WEEAK HELLEHEATFER
They are deconsolidated from the date that control BAK e
ceases.
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised ERARARAZRS  EHRREAAL
gains on transactions between group companies are BAEX S 2 REIUWE T UK o RE
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. PSMEFTFUNE - WEFR > XM
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed BARZSTBEREL AR UBRRS
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies REARPZHE—F -

adopted by the Group.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL Htt B EERSITBERBE w0

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32

32.2 Separate financial statements 32.2 MIYMERE

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

32.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.4 Foreign currency translation

(@

b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in the
profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

32 HtBEEEXRSITHERE (&)

32.4 HHiRE

(@ THRERZEZ|%T
RERAGD KM 2 SR FTHI
B YRR LEFREEBLFH
BeHMitE(HeXm ) - 58
WMERJUBTZS] - BITRARL
AR MRAKHALI5ET -

b) XBREH
HIMZXERARGRAEEHITE
ZEERHZILRRE NP
M e FEBERGFE 2L AR
RSIRURE UMD IHE 2 TR
FRAGRNUFLCRREF 4+ 250
SWER SR RIERBAFIA

FAELAKRERSHRYTRELE
WEKRm [ EM(SHR), s %
e
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

HBEEERSUTEREE (9

32.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d) 32.4 SMMIRE (5)

() Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

32.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Other assets that are subject to amortisation are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HEEBEEASITEREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.6 Offsetting financial instruments 326 HHESHMIA

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

32.7 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other (losses)/gains, net”.

32.8 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

32.9 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

32.7

32.8

32.9

HBEEETHITRA IR E T HIASH -
HAEBRAVEELERRNTIR>
REHENFN > ERAFSAKTEME
R AEESWHSRRARREE$E -

EEAHUTRR R EMBARBHTE -
£ — ARk 55 33 72 H DR fisd 45 22 B S 3
FAH-BEHIEY  TEGREIHE™
B XAHBERARD -

fTEEmTIA
FTETAETFITUSTETAESGAREERA
RENSHIN HEREQAAREERIT
B -ENTEQARENEXKERTHR
BOet T Has [ Hfh (S47),Was - 28
B o

NERATENY

BREERNERERZEFME AR
RNEENWEEBEFLAES - HiFEEH
BRAZNMAHUT ABZHEBRAEH
EHAERNEZFIRET KO SR

R -

&N

ZBRWH ANE o RATH RGN
HEENSBERATRESIRIBR
BRMER (BRBLE) -
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.10 Trade and other payables

321

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

32.12 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.13 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

32.15 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

32.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with
all attached conditions.

32.17 Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective interest
method to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.18 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five
years ended 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 have

Al 57
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BRI &35 R
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been prepared on a consolidated basis.

1 98 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

LEMFEHE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EDNE —ZEZ= B B CZEBEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FRx TR FHET
8,543 14,073 11,894 10,769 11,326
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-@FE R = —B--F B ZB-EH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TiEgx TR FExT FExT
711,095 740,573 702,224 702,678 678,621
(215,602) (243,858) (231,703) (241,446) (228,444)
495,493 496,715 470,521 461,232 450,177
FEFABE-—E-RF 2B -F . ZET2F

CEC=FER-E-_NE=RA=+—HILANEE

BEE2 UG BRFERAGINEEEEERS






A

stock code & % £ 5% : 00599
www.ebon.com.hk


https://www.ebon.com.hk/sc/main.html

	封面
	目录
	财务摘要
	公司资料
	集团架构
	主席报告书
	管理层讨论与分析
	董事报告
	企业管治报告
	环境、社会及管治报告
	独立核数师报告
	综合全面收益表
	综合财务状况表
	综合权益变动表
	综合现金流量表
	综合财务报表附注
	五年财务摘要
	封底



